CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
OCTOBER 20, 2020

CLOSED SESSION: 6:00 P.M. - 7:00 P.M.
OPEN SESSION: 7:00 P.M.

NOTICE: IN ORDER TO MINIMIZE THE SPREAD OF THE COVID-19 VIRUS, THIS MEETING WILL BE
CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE GOVERNOR'S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20,
WHICH SUSPENDED CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS OF THE BROWN ACT.

WE ENCOURAGE ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIA
TELECONFERENCE BY CALLING (605) 468-8002, ACCESS CODE NUMBER 156811#. ANY MEMBER OF
THE PUBLIC PARTICIPATING VIA TELECONFERENCE WILL BE GIVEN THE OPPORTUNITY TO PROVIDE
PUBLIC COMMENT.

ADDITIONALLY, THE MEETING WILL BE STREAMED ON YOUTUBE LIVE
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCB ZmQZIHELh-ECEPZ2VwZg

IF YOU CHOOSE TO ATTEND THE COUNCIL MEETING IN PERSON, YOU WILL BE REQUIRED TO
MAINTAIN APPROPRIATE SOCIAL DISTANCING, INCLUDING, MAINTAINING A SIX-FOOT DISTANCE
BETWEEN YOURSELF AND OTHER INDIVIDUALS, AND WEAR A FACE COVERING. PLEASE NOTE,
SEATING IS LIMITED.

PURSUANT TO STATE ORDER, ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE REQUIRED TO WEAR A FACE
COVERING WHILE INSIDE CITY FACILITIES.

(Some Councilmembers may be participating in the meeting remotely via teleconferencing consistent
with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20.)

Notice is hereby given that the City Council will hold a Regular Meeting on October 20, 2020, at the
City Council Chambers, 1416 C Street, Livingston, California or conducted pursuant to the
provisions of the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20. Assistance will be provided to those requiring
accommodations for disabilities in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.
Persons requesting accommodation should contact the Deputy City Clerk at least 24 hours prior to

1


https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCB_ZmQZIHELh-ECEPZ2VwZg

this meeting at (209) 394-8041, Ext. 121. Any writings or documents pertaining to an Open Session
item provided to a majority of the members of the legislative body less than 72 hours prior to the
meeting shall be made available for public inspection by email if requested. The Open Session will
begin at 7:00 p.m. the Closed Session will be held in accordance with the state law prior to the Open
Session beginning at 6:00 p.m. The Closed Session will be held at the City Council Chambers Located
at 1416 C Street. The agenda shall be as follows:

CLOSED SESSION

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
CLOSED SESSION

A “Closed” or “Executive” Session of the City Council or the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the
City of Livingston may be held in accordance with state law which may include, but is not limited to, the following
types of items: personnel matters, labor negotiations, security matters, providing instructions to real property
negotiators, conference with legal counsel regarding pending litigation. The Closed Session will be held in the City
Council Chambers located at 1416 C Street, Livingston, California. Any public comment on Closed Session items
will be taken before the Closed Session. Any required announcements or discussion of Closed Session items or actions
following the Closed Session will be made in the City Council Chambers, 1416 C Street, Livingston, California.

3. Conference with Legal Counsel — Potential Litigation- Significant Exposure to Litigation
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2))
Number of Cases: 2

4. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1))
Case:  Animal Legal Defense Fund v. Foster Poultry Farms
Real Party in Interest — City of Livingston
Merced County Superior Court — Case No. 20CV-02493

REGULAR MEETING

CALL TO ORDER Next Resolution No.: 2020-61
Next Ordinance No.: 643
Pledge of Allegiance.
Moment of Silence — First Responders and Military Members.

Roll Call.

Changes to the Agenda.



ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REPORTS
Supervisor Rodrigo Espinoza Announcements and Reports.
City Staff Announcements and Reports.
City Manager Announcements and Reports.
City Council Members’ Announcements and Reports.
Mayor’s Announcements and Reports.

CITIZEN COMMENTS

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WISHING TO ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL WILL BE GIVEN THE SAME TIME
ALLOTMENT FOR COMMENTS (3 MINUTES) AS NORMALLY ALLOWED FOR MEETINGS SUBJECT TO THE
PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20

This section of the agenda allows members of the public to address the City Council on any item NOT otherwise on
the agenda. Members of the public, when recognized by the Mayor, should come forward to the lectern, and identify
themselves. Comments are normally limited to three (3) minutes. In accordance with State Open Meeting Laws, no
action will be taken by the City Council this evening. For items which are on the agenda this evening members of
the public will be provided an opportunity to address the City Council as each item is brought up for discussion.

CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine or non-controversial and will be enacted by one vote, unless
separate action is requested by the City Manager or City Council Member. There will be no separate discussion of
these items unless members of the City Council or City Manager request that specific items be removed.

1. Approval of Warrant Register Dated October 15, 2020.

2. Approval of Minutes of Meeting Held on August 25, 2020.

3. Approval of Minutes of Meeting Held on September 1, 2020.
DISCUSSION AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS

4. Resolution Authorizing the City Manager or Designee to Execute a Contract Amendment with
Hansford Economic Consulting for the Utilities Rate Study Development, as approved by the
City Attorney.

5. Resolution Approving an Amendment to an Agreement with West Coast Consultants, Inc. (WC3)
for Building Department Support Services to Extend the Agreement for an additional three (3)
years, and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment.

6. City Council Accept the bid for Audio and Visual Upgrades/Replacement in the City Council
Chambers and Authorize the City Manager to Sign the Proposal/Agreement on Behalf of the City
of Livingston.



7. Discussion Regarding Conducting Council Meetings Physically Closed to the Public Due to
COVID-19 and Pursuant to Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20.

8. Discussion and Potential Direction Regarding Towing Service Regulations Ordinance.

ADJOURNMENT



STAFF REPORT

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Warrant Register dated October 15, 2020
MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2020
PREPARED BY: Nancy Fuentes, Sr. Account Clerk

REVIEWED BY: Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve warrant register dated October 15, 2020

DISCUSSION:

In accordance with Section 37202 of the Government Code of the State of California
there is presented here with a summary of the demands against the City of
Livingston covering obligations to be paid during the period of:

October 2, 2020- October 15, 2020

Each demand has been audited and I hereby certify to their accuracy and that there
are sufficient funds for their payment as of this date.

IT IS HEREBY RECOMMENDED THE CITY COUNCIL
APPROVE THE REGISTER OF DEMANDS AS FOLLOWS:

GENERAL WARRANTS....cccciiiiiiiiinininnnn $ 445,227.54 3308-3379
PAYROLL/WIRE WARRANTS................. $ 174,452.95 1397-1405
TOTAL WARRANTS.....cccoitiiiiriiiiininennne. $ 619,680.49
ATTACHMENTS:

Accounts payable checks by date, summary by check number register.



Accounts Payable
Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date

User: nfuentes

Printed: 10/15/2020 9:03 AM

City of Livingston
1416 C Street
Livingston. CA 95334

Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference

3308 282 AT&T Mobility 10/08/2020
287277171264X0 Council Member R. Garcia Cell Service 08/08-0' 77.00
287277171264X09 City Manager Cell 08/08-09/07. 3834
287277171264X09 City Manager Cell 08/08-09/07. 21.76
287277171264X09 City Manager Cell 08/08-09/07. 21.76
287277171264X09 City Manager Cell 08/08-09/07. 21.76
287277171264X9 City Hall Cell Service 08/08-09/07. 25.41
287277171264X9 City Hall Cell Service 08/08-09/07. 26.19
287277171264X9 City Hall Cell Service 08/08-09/07. 2541
Total for Check Number 3308: 257.63
3309 356 Gouveia Engineering, Inc. 10/08/2020

10573 Encroachment Permit- PG&E Winton Pkwy 357.00
10573 Encroachment Permit- Slurry Seal- Measure V 321.56
10573 Encroachment Permit- 1229 Davis 215.25
10573 Encroachment Permit- PG&E- 1530 2ND St 357.00
10573 Encroachment Permit- PG&E Joseph St 286.13
10574 Grading Permit- Commons Building B 177.19
10576 Planning General- Conference Calls 955.50
10577 Public Works General 168.75
10577 Conf Call with PW Director 210.00
10577 Conf call w/ CM 70.00
10577 Conf call w/ CM 70.00
10577 General Project Expenses 43.44
10577 Public Works General 350.00
10578 Phase II MS4 Compliance 169.42
10579 Water General- Foster 147.00
10580 Well 14 & 16 Con Management 7,162.24
10581 Well 14 & 16 Administration 775.00
10582 Well # 8 Replacement 210.00
10583 CML-5256 (015) Roundabout Main & B 689.24
10584 Winton Parkway SB HWY 99 20,655.41
10585 Research Funding Agreement & Reimb Requi 399.00
10586 CML- 5256 (018) PH 1 Pave 6 Alleys 31.70
10587 CML-5256 (019) PH 2 Pave 2 Alleys 31.70
10588 Hammatt and Campbell Improvement 845.25
10589 Slurry Seals (Measure V) 3,843.77
10590 Slurry Seals (Measure V) 2,357.03
10591 CML-5256 (020)- Max Foster Project 377.84
10592 AAA Truck Wash TM Map Review 845.25
10594 Gallo Farms 35 AC Par Map 2020-02 1,294.08
10595 Foster Farms Plant Exp Con Management 588.00
10596 Commons Building- Review app submittals 588.00
10597 Domino's Commons Building B 101.06
10598 CMAQ Applications 137.81
Total for Check Number 3309: 44,830.62

AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM)

Page 1



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference

3310 405 Premier Access Insurance Company 10/08/2020
PR Batch 00008.08.2020 Dental PR Batch 00008.08.2020 Den 367.65
PR Batch 00008.09.2020 Dental PR Batch 00008.09.2020 Den 6.45
Total for Check Number 3310: 374.10

3311 393 State of California 10/08/2020
Held 10/03/20 200000000470014/FIPS Code 0600099 PR Endi 1,297.84
Held 10/03/2020 200000000434371 & 200000001251470 PR End 512.76
Held 10/3/20 Case 0993764321-01 Mejia PR Ending 10/03/20 246.15
Total for Check Number 3311: 2,056.75

3312 422 U.S. Bank Corporate Payment Systems 10/08/2020
ACO001 Weed Abatement Notice 7.80
ACO002 Weed Abatement Notice 15.20
AC003 MS4 Radio AD- Storm Water Patnership 2020 577.00
AR001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.66
AR001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 1.51
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 537
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.32
AR001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 1.01
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 1.59
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.64
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 3.74
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 2.09
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.16
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 2.50
AR001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 1.11
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 1.40
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.88
AR001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.26
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.83
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 1.08
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.28
AR001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.46
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.05
AR001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.07
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.10
AR001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.09
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.02
ARO001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 0.76
AR001 Laptop Case Cover for FC 1.02
ARO002 Reflective Tape- Hammatt & F 30.16
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.13
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 1.30
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.12
AR003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.03
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 2.04
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.09
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 6.90
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 1.94
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 1.79
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.84
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 4.81
AR003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.34
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 035
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 1.39
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.83
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 1.06
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 2



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.41
AR003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 2.69
AR003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.98
ARO003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 3.21
AR003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.59
AR003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 1.14
AR003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.07
AR003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 0.21
AR003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 1.31
AR003 Work Laptop carrier case for FC 1.43
ARO004 10" Concrete tubes for street flags 31.83
ARO005 Dog Waste Station- Monte Cristo 11 288.74
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.89
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.68
AR006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 1.59
AR006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 11.94
AR006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.64
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.27
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 032
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.07
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.43
AR006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.59
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 11.92
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.28
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.04
AR006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.19
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 2.29
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 11.92
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.02
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 11.92
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 1.06
AR006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.47
AR006 2-2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 043
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.38
AR006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.35
AR006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.46
AR006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.11
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.01
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.03
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.04
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.12
ARO006 2- 2x12 10" Douglas Fir to make side boards for 0.13
ARO007 Purchase Iphone 7 Plus blue case with clop for T 0.69
ARO007 Purchase Iphone 7 Plus blue case with clop for T 4.88
AR007 Purchase Iphone 7 Plus blue case with clop for T 6.98
ARO007 Purchase Iphone 7 Plus blue case with clop for T 1.40
ARO008 PWs Truck 03-31 heater core 152.10
ARO009 Hose reel repair & hose fittings 9.67
ARO010 Hose reel repair & hose fittings 8.37
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.14
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.02
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.07
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.21
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.54
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.03
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.01
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.06
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.37
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 2.80
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 3



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.03
AROI11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.11
AROI11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.16
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.10
ARO011 Monthly Prime Fee 0.05
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.05
AROI11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.15
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.01
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.09
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.25
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 2.80
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.11
AROI1 Monthly Prime Fee 0.03
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.01
AROI11 Monthly Prime Fee 2.80
AROI11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.10
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 2.80
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.01
ARO11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.08
AROI11 Monthly Prime Fee 0.01
ARO012 OtterBox -Pw 18.99
ARO12 OtterBox -Pw 18.97
DS001 Uniform Cleaning/ Soria & Kang 27.37
DS002 Postage Car Mount return to Havis 13.53
DS003 Uniform Cleaning/ Kang 14.10
DS004 Uniform Cleaning/Kang 25.00
DS005 Exemnal Hard Drive for Detective 64.64
DS006 Evidence Supplies 208.01
DS007 Uniform Cleaning/Chief Soria 14.10
DS008 Uniform Cleaning/Chief Soria 4.10
DS009 Chief Hat Pin 139.83
DS010 Uniform Cleaning/Sgt Kang 13.27
DSO011 Office Supplies 455.71
E696001 Fuel Creek Fire-CA SNF00391 24.88
E696002 Fuel Creek Fire-CA SNF00391 43.08
E696003 Creek FireCabin Air Filter & Febreze Vent Diff 47.50
E696004 Fuel Creek Fire -CA SNF00391 100.00
HB001 Adobe Subcrition Aug 2020 24.99
HB002 Adobe Subcrition Sept 2020 24.99
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.60
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 6.00
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.24
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 3.78
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.30
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 1.26
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.96
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 3.54
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 6.77
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.42
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.41
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 1.68
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 16.01
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.18
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 1.14
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 6.00
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 2.81
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 432
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 1.20
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 59.95
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 4



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 119.90
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 3.60
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.72
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 59.95
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 6.00
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 1.97
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 1.97
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 2.68
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.30
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 3.23
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.30
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 89.93
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 8.93
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 1.86
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 3.23
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 1.52
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 1.32
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 11.99
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 4.38
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 6.48
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.18
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 10.67
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 89.45
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 4.80
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 1.38
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 2.76
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 3.78
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 4.61
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 1.14
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.12
HBO003 Happys Online Training and Test 22.86
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 6.00
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 3.80
HB003 Happys Online Training and Test 0.12
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 27.58
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.08
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.43
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 1.45
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.73
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.76
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.05
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 4.90
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.04
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.28
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 2.46
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.62
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.86
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.14
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.03
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 191
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.44
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.81
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.35
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 1.38
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.65
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.45
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.74
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 1.44
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 1.38
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 5



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 20.69
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.92
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 13.79
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 2.76
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.15
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.83
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 20.69
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.26
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.36
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.03
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 022
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.39
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.30
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 1.38
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.36
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.29
HB004 White picture frame-Monica 10.46
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.06
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.29
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.10
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.06
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.61
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 13.79
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 1.10
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.99
HBO004 Memory Card-Monica 16.46
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 1.94
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.74
HB004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 3.52
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 1.29
HBO004 Portable Hard Drive- Happy 0.04
JB001 Art/ Mural Supply 397.99
JR001 Meetng with City Engineer 57.50
JR002 Meeting with City Engineer 23.73
JR003 Meeting with Admin 26.87
LPDO001 Radar Trailer Decals 67.81
LPD002 Cleaning of Unit 9 27.99
MC001 Card- Anthony 3.98
TA001 Brackets for american Flag at CY 8.07
TA002 Sympaty Flowers for Anthony 31.74
TA002 Sympaty Flowers for Anthony 31.75
TA002 Sympaty Flowers for Anthony 31.74
TMO001 Chalk Art Contest Winners 25.00
TME001 Monthly State Water Report 8.40
TMEO002 Sewer Collection System- Grd 2 Renewal 2020 96.00
Total for Check Number 3312: 4,158.37
Total for 10/8/2020: 51,677.47

3313 251 ABS Direct, Inc. 10/15/2020
124666 Utility Statements for the Month of October- TC 807.75
124666 Utility Statements for the Month of October- TC 374.11
124666 Utility Statements for the Month of October- TC 590.92
Total for Check Number 3313: 1,772.78
3314 395 Administrative Solution, Inc. 10/15/2020

PR Batch 00005.09.2020 ASI PR Batch 00005.09.2020 ASI 30.00
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 6



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference

A1003817 Monthly Medical Administration Fees- October ! 20.00
A1003817 Monthly Medical Administration Fees- October : 10.00
Total for Check Number 3314: 60.00

3315 394 Joel Aguilar 10/15/2020
Memorial Park20 Paint for the Memorial Park Stage Mural 132.74
Total for Check Number 3315: 132.74

3316 250 Alhambra 10/15/2020
14654651 09202 Drinking water service for Fire Dept 090320 & 57.74
14654651 092020 Drinking water service for City Hall 09/03/20 & 39.20
Total for Check Number 3316: 96.94

3317 252 Allways Towing 10/15/2020
061908 Evidence Vehicle Case #L 20080781 180.00
062093 Evidence Vehicle Case #L 20090850 180.00
Total for Check Number 3317: 360.00

3318 397 American Fidelity Assurance Company 10/15/2020
PR Batch 00003.10.2020 Health FSA PR Batch 00003.10.2020 Hea 383.29
Total for Check Number 3318: 383.29

3319 253 AT&T 10/15/2020
000015406710 DOJ Connection 09/01/2020-09/30/2020 250.55
Total for Check Number 3319: 250.55

3320 bogie Bogie's Pump Systems 10/15/2020
14503 Repairs kit for pump @ tank sire & couplings 588.21
Total for Check Number 3320: 588.21

3321 417 Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 10/15/2020
BPI82635 Ferric Chlorine for Water Wells 991.16
BPI82635 Ferric Chlorine for Water Wells 1,431.53
Total for Check Number 3321: 2,422.69

3322 193 BSK Associates 10/15/2020
AD18850 Arsenic, CA DW ICPMS 80.00
AD18851 Arsenic, CA DW ICPMS 40.00
AD19264 Quanti-Tray 2000 Total Coliform & E. Coli R-1 150.00
AD19388 Arsenic, CA DW ICPMS 80.00
AD19393 Arsenic, CA DW ICPMS 40.00
AD19478 Arsenic, CA DW ICPMS 40.00
AD19479 Arsenic, CA DW ICPMS 80.00
AD19883 Quanti-Tray 2000 Total Coliform & E. Coli R-1 150.00
Total for Check Number 3322: 660.00

3323 418 Central Valley Concrete 10/15/2020
146909 D Street Sidewalk ( Measure V) 1,614.63
Total for Check Number 3323: 1,614.63

3324 475 Ceres Pipe & Metal 10/15/2020
237619 Memorial Park- fence post picketts post caps anc 102.35
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 7



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Amount

Invoice No Description
237619 Memorial Park- fence post picketts post caps anc 40.08
Total for Check Number 3324: 142.43

3325 291 City of Livingston c/o L &L District Irrigati 10/15/2020

92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 35.97
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 23.49
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 96.86
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 242.40
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 36.05
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 22.04
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 420 Main St 166.43
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 6.63
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Irrig winton prk 80.43
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 23.98
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 161.41
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 7.33
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Police Dept 421.93
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 1,281.09
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 136.42
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 154.20
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z14 Walnut and 62.72
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 30.45
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 24.23
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 22.63
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 13.31
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 2.29
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z16 Winton Pkw 80.43
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 8.53
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 23.30
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 19.69
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 19.40
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 5.96
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 45.31
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 2.80
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 84.63
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 138.90
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 0.87
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 220.25
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fire Dept 28.18
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 57.66
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 0.63
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 30.47
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 8.08
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 4.28
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 84.37
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 5.83
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 7.12
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 12.32
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 28.62
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z6 Peach W. Lif 62.83
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 262.60
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Lucero Park 675.03
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 70.09
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Council Chambe 72.02
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 42.62
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 9.50
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 3.85
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 5.23
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 24.86
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 8



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Amount
Invoice No Description
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 9.79
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 56.88
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 1.64
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 1.19
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 9.57
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 City Hall 52.64
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 135.36
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 City Hall 218.65
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 194.75
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 7.09
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 27.79
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Memorial Park 2,354.15
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Peach/2nd sew li 28.18
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Lanscape of Rot 828.11
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z16 Westskde ar 80.43
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 10.17
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 23.91
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 61.23
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 93.93
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 16.27
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 26.53
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 14.57
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 79.61
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z13b Peach Ave 191.47
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Musuem 72.02
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Lil Guys Park 184.83
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 188.22
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 71.54
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 135.57
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 0.90
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 12.26
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 11.75
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 6.84
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 City Hall 80.98
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 74.37
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 NE Corner Wint: 92.56
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Childcare center 185.12
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 49.54
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 65.68
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 274.87
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 8.60
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 114.41
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 144.12
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 5.66
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 38.31
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 223
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 18.54
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 7.20
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 0.83
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 26.55
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 42.34
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 86.43
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 13.68
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 59.16
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Corp Yard 43.59
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Corp Yard 44.91
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 16.70
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 48.71
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 33.91
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 9



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 21.10
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z13 Emerald anc 117.68
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 76.22
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 121.83
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 67.18
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 68.75
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z13b Winton an 136.95
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z13 Peach and P 51.73
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 13.70
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 29.53
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 72.48
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 23.30
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z14 Dwight & T 114.53
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 10.59
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Corp Yard 43.59
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 City Hall 52.64
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 2.99
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 2.36
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 3.07
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 1.24
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 1.60
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 114.36
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 8.91
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 55.16
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Lil Guys field 72.02
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 236.54
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 13.29
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 17.53
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 82.57
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z16 Island on W 160.50
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z 15 Lilac Ave 39.26
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Z16 Island Wint 92.56
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Singh Park 11.57
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Max Foster 4.95
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 41.16
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Ark Park 6.90
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Narada Sew Lift 28.18
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 APE Across fron 225.23
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 620 Main st 163.21
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Don Meyer 3.70
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Fred Worden 2.94
92020 UB Billing for September 2020 Joseph Gallo 230.52
Total for Check Number 3325: 14,629.51
3326 CLEARS7 CLEARS, Inc. 10/15/2020
2021 CLEARS Membership-Arevelo 50.00
Total for Check Number 3326: 50.00
3327 259 Collins & Schoettler Planning Consultants  10/15/2020
1103 Planning Consulting Fees- Sept 2020 9,423.75
Total for Check Number 3327: 9,423.75
3328 447 Conco West, Inc 10/15/2020
Payment No. 07 Progress Payment No.07 Well 14 & 16 Improver 175,441.25
Total for Check Number 3328: 175,441.25
3329 283 CoreLogic Solutions, LLC 10/15/2020
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 10



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Amount

Invoice No Description
82045263 Geographic Package for the month of Sept 2020 66.67
82045263 Geographic Package for the month of Sept 2020 66.66
82045263 Geographic Package for the month of Sept 2020 66.67
Total for Check Number 3329: 200.00

3330 163 EZ Auto Supply

334524 Paint for Safety ballard @ shop 13.77
334548 Paint for Safety ballard @ shop 13.77
334936 Tubeless Sealant for Grey Honda PD Veh 7.85
334949 Fuses for lighted crosswalk @ Main & J st 2.58
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.51
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 1.95
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.08
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 1.62
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.84
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.05
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.07
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 21.76
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 4.17
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.25
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.13
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.02
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.64
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.21
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 1.17
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 1.23
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.69
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.79
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.59
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 291
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.04
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.50
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.79
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.36
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.20
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 0.87
335180 Fuse Holders & Pilers to install the fuse holders 1.08
335183 Fuse Holders 0.05
335183 Fuse Holders 0.13
335183 Fuse Holders 0.15
335183 Fuse Holders 0.74
335183 Fuse Holders 0.41
335183 Fuse Holders 0.51
335183 Fuse Holders 0.17
335183 Fuse Holders 0.31
335183 Fuse Holders 1.06
335183 Fuse Holders 0.09
335183 Fuse Holders 0.16
335183 Fuse Holders 0.02
335183 Fuse Holders 0.22
335183 Fuse Holders 0.01
335183 Fuse Holders 0.21
335183 Fuse Holders 5.53
335183 Fuse Holders 0.05
335183 Fuse Holders 0.30
335183 Fuse Holders 0.20
335183 Fuse Holders 0.20
335183 Fuse Holders 0.01
335183 Fuse Holders 0.01
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 11



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference
335183 Fuse Holders 0.06
335183 Fuse Holders 0.02
335183 Fuse Holders 0.13
335183 Fuse Holders 0.03
335183 Fuse Holders 0.28
Total for Check Number 3330: 92.55
3331 295 Ferguson Waterworks #1423 10/15/2020
1574517 Joint Meter Angle ball & pipe insert for repairs 197.46
Total for Check Number 3331: 197.46
3332 fosterpu Foster's Pumps, Inc. 10/15/2020
17127 Robin Well Site #11 2,342.75
Total for Check Number 3332: 2,342.75
3333 322 Fresno City College 10/15/2020
15516206 FTO Update/ Villarreal 61.00
Total for Check Number 3333: 61.00
3334 188 Frontier 10/15/2020
2093943344-0920 Phone Service for PW 09/15/20-10/14/20 316.73
2093947966-0920 Phone Service for DWWTP 09/15/20-10/14/20 238.24
2093948044 Phone Service for PW 09/15/20-10/14/20 110.35
2093949532-1019 Museum Phone Service 09/25-10/24/20 80.78
Total for Check Number 3334: 746.10
3335 164 Garza Tire & Wheel, Inc 10/15/2020
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 1.14
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.67
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 1.54
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.78
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.05
902759 3 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 28.68
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.85
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 5.50
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 1.11
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 1.62
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.66
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.07
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.10
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 3.84
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.17
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.47
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.02
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 1.43
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 2.56
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.90
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.28
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.32
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.10
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 1.04
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 2.14
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 0.27
902759 2 Toro Mower front tires-LMDs 1.04
902789 Tractor tire repair- sewer 37.50
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 12



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference

Total for Check Number 3335: 94.85

3336 474 Hansford Economic Consulting LLC 10/15/2020
187 City of Livingston Rate Studies 2019- Sept 2020 195.83
187 City of Livingston Rate Studies 2019- Sept 2020 195.84
187 City of Livingston Rate Studies 2019- Sept 2020 195.83
Total for Check Number 3336: 587.50

3337 267 Hoffman Security 10/15/2020
491235 Daycare Alarm System 10/01/20-10/31/20 111.00
491237 DWWTP Alarm System 10/01/20-10/31/20 36.95
Total for Check Number 3337: 147.95

3338 458 IEH- Aquatic Research 10/15/2020
150797 DWWTP Lab Testing 312.00
Total for Check Number 3338: 312.00

3339 296 Image Source 10/15/2020
25AR1174863 Danna's Copies Used 08/01/20-08/31/2020 22.96
25AR1174863 Danna's Copies Used 08/01/20-08/31/2020 22.95
25AR1174863 Danna's Copies Used 08/01/20-08/31/2020 22.96
25AR1174863 Danna's Copies Used 08/01/20-08/31/2020 22.95
25AR1174863 Danna's Copies Used 08/01/20-08/31/2020 22.96
25AR1174863 Danna's Copies Used 08/01/20-08/31/2020 22.96
25AR1174863 Danna's Copies Used 08/01/20-08/31/2020 2295
25AR1174863 Danna's Copies Used 08/01/20-08/31/2020 22.96
25AR1174863 Danna's Copies Used 08/01/20-08/31/2020 22.95
25AR1181593 Copies used Copy Room 08/20/20-09/19/20 7.24
25AR1181593 Copies used Copy Room 08/20/20-09/19/20 0.32
25AR1181593 Copies used Copy Room 08/20/20-09/19/20 364.46
25AR1181593 Copies used Copy Room 08/20/20-09/19/20 47.22
25AR1181593 Copies used Copy Room 08/20/20-09/19/20 7.24
25AR1181593 Copies used Copy Room 08/20/20-09/19/20 28.13
25AR1181593 Copies used Copy Room 08/20/20-09/19/20 7.19
25AR1181593 Copies used Copy Room 08/20/20-09/19/20 83.54
Total for Check Number 3339: 751.94

3340 165 J L Analytical Services, Inc. 10/15/2020
510310 DWWTP- Weekly Lab Testing 259.00
511002 DWWTP- Weekly & Monthly Lab Testing 09/02 267.00
Total for Check Number 3340: 526.00

3341 476 Jorgensen Company 10/15/2020
5902159 Childcare Semi Annual Service Extinguisher 164.48
Total for Check Number 3341: 164.48

3342 318 La Rue Communications 10/15/2020
7837 Radio Maintenance Contract 1,061.00
Total for Check Number 3342: 1,061.00

3343 268 Language Line Services, Inc. 10/15/2020
4887397 Translation Services- PD 268.84
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 13



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference
Total for Check Number 3343: 268.84

3344 461 LEAF 10/15/2020

11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 235
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 420
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 1.83
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 4.51
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 5.25
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 24.63
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.40
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 428
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 1.30
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 4.86
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 1.43
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 162.09
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 8.11
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 7.10
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.30
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.47
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.15
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 9.27
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 6.11
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 4.86
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 2.36
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 3.96
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 81.04
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 3.07
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 2.89
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 2.85
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 121.56
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.74
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 3.16
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 8.08
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 2.16
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.78
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 8.11
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 121.56
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.76
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 16.20
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 81.04
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 4.11
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 1.86
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 7.78
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.27
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 8.86
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 3.17
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 5.57
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 40.52
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.29
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.06
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.79
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.90
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 2.87
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 3.27
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 7.57
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 0.20
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 041
11088815 Copier Lease for City Hall Printers -09/26/2020 8.11
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 14



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference

Total for Check Number 3344: 810.43

3345 477 Tommy Mejia 10/15/2020
155269 Refund to Employee for DOT Physical 30.00
155269 Refund to Employee for DOT Physical 30.00
Total for Check Number 3345: 60.00

3346 MERCDCDF Merced County Fire Department 10/15/2020
OP2019-0158 Operational Permit / Assembly 5 4th of July 201 230.00
Total for Check Number 3346: 230.00

3347 278 Merced Irrigation District 10/15/2020
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 6,519.95
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 10.67
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 608.14
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 232.02
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 31.90
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 15.94
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202 99.98
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 137.34
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 325.64
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202 86.09
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 43.76
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 63.80
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 125.92
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 133.03
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 104.53
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 141.52
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 30.21
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202¢ 140.02
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 815.01
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 65.13
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 153.03
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 203.00
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 31.90
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202( 34.92
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 32.58
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 2,342.93
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202: 3,923.06
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 1,237.36
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 92.53
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 65.13
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 16.80
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 1,940.95
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 125.92
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202 216.24
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202¢ 131.51
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 16.80
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 7,446.41
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202 9,324.08
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202 10.67
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 488.45
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202 168.22
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 15.94
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 31.90
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 8.39
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202 6.04
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 15



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 113.33
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 214.27
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 11,070.56
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202( 156.15
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202( 204.87
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 16.80
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202! 75.55
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202¢ 182.48
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202( 31.90
00000070-0920 Street light electric service 7/31/2020-08/31/202 10.94
00000070-0920a Street Light Electric Service 07/20/20-08/20 168.27
00000070-0920a Street Light Electric Service 07/20/20-08/20 114.38
00000070-0920a Street Light Electric Service 07/20/20-08/20 87.69
00000070-0920a Street Light Electric Service 07/20/20-08/20 81.46
Total for Check Number 3347: 50,324.01
3348 180 Mission Linen Service 10/15/2020
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.39
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.42
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.59
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.11
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 3.93
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 14.93
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.25
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.11
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.06
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.12
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.01
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 1.43
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.95
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.14
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.61
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.17
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.34
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.29
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 13.74
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.53
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.13
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.05
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.25
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 9.08
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.03
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.04
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 82.33
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.02
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.07
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 13.57
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.01
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.08
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.57
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.13
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.05
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.41
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.08
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.10
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.01
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.04
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 15.31
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.15

AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 16



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference

513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.01
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.01
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.06
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.02
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.80
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.39
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 2.05
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.05
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.01
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.04
513294680 Uniform Service & Supplies 09/23/2020 0.32
513294681 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/23/2t 8.64
513294681 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/23/2! 3.46
513294681 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/23/2! 3.46
513294681 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/23/2t 18.95
513294681 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/23/2! 18.96
513294681 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/23/2! 3.28
513294681 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/23/2! 18.95
513294681 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/23/2! 3.28
513340277 Fire Dept- Janitorial Supplies 09/30/2020 85.18
513340279 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/30/2( 2.51
513340279 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/30/2¢ 20.81
513340279 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/30/2( 4.78
513340279 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/30/2( 337
513340279 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/30/2( 2.51
513340279 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/30/2( 20.82
513340279 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/30/2! 3.36
513340279 Uniform Service and Janitorial Supplies 09/30/2( 20.82
Total for Check Number 3348: 408.53

3349 431 Monte Vista Small Animal Hospital 10/15/2020
456806 Vet Fees- 09/07/2020 Cat 74.88
Total for Check Number 3349: 74.88

3350 459 Municipal Maintenance Equipment 10/15/2020
0152567-IN 1,998.63
Total for Check Number 3350: 1,998.63

3351 197 N & S Tractor 10/15/2020
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 108.34
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 5.82
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 8.09
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 1.22
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 0.27
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 14.49
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 6.14
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 3.42
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 2.54
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 0.20
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 2.95
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 1.77
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 1.01
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 108.35
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 2.50
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 9.64
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 3.92
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 1.07
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 17



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 108.34
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 0.64
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 0.09
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 4.19
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 0.40
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 20.77
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 3.20
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 431
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 5.40
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 3.94
WT15388 Diagnoses on 580 Back Hoe 0.36
Total for Check Number 3351: 433.38

3352 NENA NENA 10/15/2020
300056803 NENA Membership/ M. Arevalo 142.00
300056804 NENA Membership/ D. Soria 142.00
Total for Check Number 3352: 284.00
3353 199 Northstar Chemical 10/15/2020

177672 Sodium Hypochlorite for Well #9 ( 220 Units) 447.32
177673 Sodium Hypochlorite for Well #11 (150 units) 304.99
177674 Sodium Hypochlorite for Well #13 (280 units) 569.32
178538 Sodium Hypochlorite for Well #8 (225 units) 457.49
178539 Sodium Hypochlorite for Well # 9 ( 100 Units) 203.33
178618 Sodium Hypochlorite for Well #17 (400 units) 813.31
179150 Sodium Hypochlorite for Well #12 406.66
179151 Sodium Hypochlorite for Well #13 711.65
179152 Sodium Hypochlorite for Well #14 406.66
179318 Sodium Hypochlorite for Well #16 264.33
179319 Sodium Hypochlorite for Well #17 1,565.63
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 7.29
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 1.95
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 780.14
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 2.85
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 780.14
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 21.23
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 149.57
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 44.20
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 780.15
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 4.60
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 41.94
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 18.28
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 28.34
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 31.02
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 803.79
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 803.79
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 104.32
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 2.61
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 38.89
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 69.59
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 0.61
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 17.97
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 7.67
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 24.61
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 30.14
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 1.46
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 58.25
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 8.80
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 18



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference

C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 23.02
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 12.74
C31346 Annual License for WO System 1 YR. 10/29/20- 28.19
Total for Check Number 3353: 10,878.84

3354 302 Office Depot, Inc. 10/15/2020
123226976001 Admin Supplies- Files, Tabs, Keyboard, Paper 32241
124477001001 Mat For Finance Director 53.86
124477970001 Admin Supplies- Sharpie markers 8.34
126195962001 Ofifce Supplies -PD 122.45
126196907001 Ofifce Supplies -PD 29.14
127962877001 Labels for Finance Dept Budget books 12.23
Total for Check Number 3354: 548.43

3355 201 O'reilly Automotive, Inc. 10/15/2020
3654-36004 Fuel cap for truck 15-25 3.60
3654-36004 Fuel cap for truck 15-25 3.60
3654362031 Brake lights switch for Shop truck 03-31 15.63
3654362408 Oil Filter for Evidence Vehicle PD 4.63
3654-36275 Cabin air filter for Explorer Truck 24.89
3654-362898 6 spark plugs 6 spark plug boots iridium 113.53
3654-363448 6 spark plugs 6 spark plug boots iridium 26.33
3654-364062 Oil Filter for Explorer Vehicle- PD 23.44
Total for Check Number 3355: 215.65

3356 205 Paramount Pest Services 10/15/2020
2009-00689 Pest Control Services- City Hall 37.00
2009-00690 Pest Control Services- Fire Dept 37.00
2009-00691 Pest Control Services- Range 37.00
2009-00692 Pest Control Services- Museum 37.00
2009-00693 Pest Control Services- Corpyard 47.00
2009-00694 Pest Control Services- PD 37.00
2009-00695 Pest Control Services- Senior Center 36.00
Total for Check Number 3356: 268.00

3357 203 PG&E 10/15/2020
0007951137-4 Monthly Services for 21800 Feet Nor. of Livings 111.01
0007951139-0 Monthly Services for ES Lincoln S/Peach 08/20: 109.26
0007951275-2 Monthly Services for Corner of White & Crowel 170.60
4832044416-8 Monthly Services for 936 Dwight Ave 08/20-09/: 71.92
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I 5.82
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L; 30.78
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L 21.06
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Domesti 28,984.09
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L: 28.10
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L 148.37
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer [ 5.53
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L: 4.56
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L: 7.61
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 PW/Stre 637.96
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L: 43.85
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L: 8.73
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer [ 9.66
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer [ 113.45
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Police 40.17
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer [ 22.86
7095488380-0920 Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Fire 30.94
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 19



Check No

Vendor No
Invoice No

Vendor Name
Description

Check Date
Reference

Check Amount

3358

3359

7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7095488380-0920
7770778848-3Sep
7798858785-1

8714889613-4Sep

303
37382

mailfin
N8515033
N8515033

Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Parks
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L:
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L:
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L:
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer [
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer [
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer [
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Gas Tax
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Recreati
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L:
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer F
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer [
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Water D
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Storm D
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L:
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L:
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer [
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L:
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L:
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer L
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Admin
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L:
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Soccer I
Utility Services 08/15/2020-09/14/2020 Street L
Monthly Services for 14960 Vinewood 08/18-09.
Monthly Services for Linciln Blvd 08/15-09/15/:
Monthly Services for 1416 C St Back

Price Ford of Turlock
PD PO3 Oil change

Quadient Leasing USA, Inc.
Postage Agreement Covered Period 08/04/20-11/
Postage Agreement Covered Period 08/04/20-11/

Total for Check Number 3357:

10/15/2020

Total for Check Number 3358:

10/15/2020

580.00
18.67
57.79
33.53

1.44
27.97
3.49
17.82
17.46
79.13
13.87
3,896.58

704.85

12.64

2.59
24.42
0.47
773.93
1.48
21.38
29.50
34,025.04
13.63
1.98
80.42

103.49
41.60
23.53
29.90

1.94
44.19
18.14
16.11
69.01
52.79

2.16

0.61

274.70

7.23
21.49

1.10
38.58

2.82
31.81

6.68
22.84

149.34
21.04

100.20

72,127.71

55.24

55.24

211.82
211.82

AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM)

Page 20



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference

N8515033 Postage Agreement Covered Period 08/04/20-11/ 211.81
N8515033 Postage Agreement Covered Period 08/04/20-11/ 211.83
N8515033 Postage Agreement Covered Period 08/04/20-11/ 211.83
N8515033 Postage Agreement Covered Period 08/04/20-11/ 211.82
N8515033 Postage Agreement Covered Period 08/04/20-11/ 211.83
N8515033 Postage Agreement Covered Period 08/04/20-11/ 211.82
N8515033 Postage Agreement Covered Period 08/04/20-11/ 211.83
Total for Check Number 3359: 1,906.41

3360 RADIOMAT Radio Mate 10/15/2020
204983 Dispatch Headset Replacement 828.76
Total for Check Number 3360: 828.76

3361 306 Ricoh USA, Inc. 10/15/2020
104155763 PW Contract Lease for 09/12/20-10/11/20 376.61
104155763 PW Contract Lease for 09/12/20-10/11/20 25.11
104155763 PW Contract Lease for 09/12/20-10/11/20 100.42
Total for Check Number 3361: 502.14

3362 323 Springbrook Holding company LLC 10/15/2020
TM INV-003097 Standard Professional Services 810.00
Total for Check Number 3362: 810.00

3363 308 Sprint 10/15/2020
898215431-179 Cell Phone Service for Rec Dept 08/26-09/25/20 100.47
Total for Check Number 3363: 100.47

3364 478 SunRun Installation Services, Inc. 10/15/2020
Refund Project Cancelled-1180 I street 75.00
Refundl Project Cancelled-1180 I street 225.00
Refund2 Project Cancelled-1180 I street 1.95
Refund3 Project Cancelled-1180 I street 1.00
Total for Check Number 3364: 302.95

3365 440 Target Specialty Products 10/15/2020
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 10.48
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 10.48
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 10.48
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 10.48
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 10.48
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 10.48
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 10.48
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 104.82
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 10.48
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 104.80
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 10.48
INVP500262258 Herbicides for Weed Control 10.48
INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 27.28
INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 272.71
INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 272.86
INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 27.28
INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 27.27
INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 27.28
INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 27.28
INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 27.27
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 21



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference

INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 27.28
INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 27.27
INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 27.28
INVP500262259 Round up for Weed Control 27.28
Total for Check Number 3365: 1,132.82

3366 311 TBA Auto Parts 10/15/2020
1-682211 Nitrile Gloves for PD 188.35
1-682268 Nitrile Gloves for PD 86.09
1-682269 Return Nitrile Gloves for PD -102.25
Total for Check Number 3366: 172.19

3367 284 Trans Union LLC 10/15/2020
09005481 UB credit check 95.86
09005481 UB credit check 98.76
09005481 UB credit check 95.86
Total for Check Number 3367: 290.48

3368 313 U.S. Bank Equipment Finance 10/15/2020
424875953 PD Copier Lease 524.47
Total for Check Number 3368: 524.47

3369 249 United Site Services 10/15/2020
114-10936358 Court PArk Portable Sink station 09/14/20-10/11 110.06
114-10944784 Court PArk Portable Sink station 09/14/20-10/11 245.77
114-10971715 Fred Worden Park 09/18/20-10/15/20 252.94
Total for Check Number 3369: 608.77

3370 366 USA Blue Book 10/15/2020
353797 Colorimeter & Packets for Treatment Wells 521.34
354745 Manganese Packets for testing treatments wells 523.77
355074 Klein Tools Chicago Grip for Pulling new water 362.89
357909 Acid Powder Pillow for Water Wells 369.28
358336 City Wide Marking Paint & Wand 213.59
Total for Check Number 3370: 1,990.87

3371 467 Ivan Valenzuela 10/15/2020
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.59
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.46
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 40.00
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 20.00
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.05
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 1.08
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.73
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.33
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.07
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.72
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.02
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.19
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 35.00
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 1.00
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.04
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 70.00
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.23
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 3.83
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 22



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference

1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 15.00
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 1.13
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 1.49
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.20
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.63
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 1.78
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.47
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 2.67
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.12
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.07
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.80
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.77
1 Refund for Work Boots Per MOU 0.53
Total for Check Number 3371: 200.00

3372 314 Valley Coffee 10/15/2020
218916 PD Water 85.00
Total for Check Number 3372: 85.00

3373 315 Valley Entry Systems, Inc. 10/15/2020
35445 Service Call to repair gate system on well 317 228.00
Total for Check Number 3373: 228.00

3374 367 Verizon Wireless 10/15/2020
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 3.50
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 3.18
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.82
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 2.06
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 7.17
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 4.99
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 351
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 156.10
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 3.40
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 8.35
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.99
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 441
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 130.01
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 249.77
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 1.53
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 3.20
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 2.54
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 8.57
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.87
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 5.22
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 3.40
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 4.15
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.29
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.07
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.84
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 473
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 2.60
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 126.97
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 491
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 3.06
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.22
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 9.51
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 2.78
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 23



Check No Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount

Invoice No Description Reference
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 6.57
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.44
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.82
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.32
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 4.39
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.06
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 273.69
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 1.44
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 9.96
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.52
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 7.85
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 2.03
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 2.40
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 11.77
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 14.13
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 16.87
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 043
9863110528 08/19/20-09/18/20 PW Cell Phone Charges 0.32
Total for Check Number 3374: 1,117.73

3375 VISION Vision Service Plan - CA 10/15/2020

810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 1.39
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.40
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.77
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 36.95
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 18.02
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 59.50
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 091
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 8.34
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 65.99
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 307.83
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 22.61
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 3.79
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.09
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.30
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 7.15
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.07
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 86.63
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.87
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 26.80
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 41.96
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 55.31
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.32
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 27.94
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.03
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.64
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 4.79
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 28.61
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 7.57
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 4477
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 20.89
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.38
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 41.27
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.48
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 130.45
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 2.56
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 21.62
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 98.98
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 23.38
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 24



Check No  Vendor No Vendor Name Check Date Check Amount
Invoice No Description Reference

810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 141.90
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.27
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 286.82
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.14
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 17.08
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 429
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.63
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 30.50
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 12.58
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.46
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.04
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 1.82
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.04
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.23
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 4.38
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 0.78
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 6.68
810506740 Vision Claims 09/2020 2.67
Total for Check Number 3375: 1,711.67

3376 479 Vivint Solar Development,LLC 10/15/2020
Refund Refund on project 744 Oakeeod Ct 300.00
Refundl Refund on project 744 Oakeeod Ct 2.52
Refund2 Refund on project 744 Oakeeod Ct 1.00
Total for Check Number 3376: 303.52

3377 287 West Coast Code Consultants, Inc. 10/15/2020
220-09-155.01 Building Plan Review- Sept 2020 4,250.28
220-09-155-02 Building- Inspections- Sept 2020 11,760.00
220-09-155-03 Building Permit Tech Sept 2020 7,040.00
220-09-155-E360 Building Eprocess 360- Sept 2020 800.00
Total for Check Number 3377: 23,850.28

3378 210 WGR Southwest, Inc. 10/15/2020
24173 MS4 Compliance 08/31/2020*08/03/2020 2,100.00
Total for Check Number 3378: 2,100.00

3379 317 Zee Medical Service Co. 10/15/2020
66272951 First Aid Supplies for City Hall 44548
66272952 First Aid Supplies for City Hall 37.14
Total for Check Number 3379: 482.62
Total for 10/15/2020: 393,550.07
Report Total (72 checks): 445,227.54
AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (10/15/2020 9:03 AM) Page 25



MEETING MINUTES

SPECIAL MEETING/BUDGET WORKSHOP
LIVINGSTON CITY COUNCIL
AUGUST 25, 2020

A Special Meeting/Budget Workshop of the Livingston City Council was held on August 25, 2020, in the
Council of Chambers with Mayor Samra presiding.

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Samra called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m.

ROLL CALL

D Mayor Gurpal Samra

DX Mayor Pro-Tem Raul Garcia (via teleconference)
Council Member Maria Baptista-Soto

D Council Member Juan Aguilar

DX Council Member Gagandeep Kang

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance to the flag was recited.
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

None.

CITIZEN COMMENTS

Mayor Samra opened Citizen Comments at 6:08 p.m.

Clerk’s Notes: Council Member Aguilar stepped out of the Council Chambers at 7:42 p.m. but returned at
7:43 p.m.

Maribel (the last name was not provided) inquired about Main Street's parking lot (between Fiesta Market

and True Value). She asked why the City purchased the property and what are the plans for the property.
Moreover, Maribel asked what the City is collecting on the 40 acres lease next to the treatment plant. She

Page 1 of 16



also inquired about the barbershop next to the Council Chambers. Maribel asked how much is the City
collecting on the rental of the barbershop building. Lastly, she asked for the property's status on North
Main St. She stated that her questions led her to believe that Mayor Samra has used his seat for personal
gain. Maribel indicated that the City should be profiting from acquisitions instead of handing out favors to
friends. She requested that all properties that do not generate revenue or sufficient revenue be liquidated
immediately to compensate for the current budget deficit.

Mayor Samra asked Maribel if she would like her questions answered in writing or provided at the next
meeting.

Maribel replied that she would like an update at the next meeting.
Mayor Samra closed Citizen Comments at 6:11 p.m., as there were no further comments from the public.

City Manager Ramirez stated that in reference to the property next to the Council Chambers, that building
is owned by the City. The tenants have a five-year lease, and he believes they are in their third year of the
lease. The City is currently receiving $500 a month for the building. Moreover, Mr. Ramirez stated that
the property on Olive St. has been sold, and they should be closing on the property soon. Mr. Ramirez
also addressed the question about the 40 acres by the wastewater treatment plant. He indicated that the
property is being leased for alfalfa harvesting. He believes the City receives about eight to ten thousand a
year for the leasing of the 40 acres. Lastly, Mr. Ramirez stated that the City purchased the parking lot by
Fiesta Market for public parking. Anyone who visits the businesses on Main Street can use the parking
lot.

Council Member Kang asked why the City is leasing the 40-acre property at a low—price.

City Manager Ramirez replied that the City came up with the price stated because the lessee harvest and
maintains the land. He pointed out that the City is not tied to the lessee, and if there is someone out there
that is willing to lease the land at a higher price, they are open to that option.

Council Member Kang noted that land with water is about one thousand dollars an acre. He asked Mr.
Ramirez to look into it further. Moreover, Mr. Kang asked how much is the City paying for the Senior
Center. He also inquired about the low-price rent on the building next to the Council Chambers.

City Manager Ramirez stated that the City pays one thousand dollars a month for the Senior Center.
Moreover, rent arrangements for the building next to the Council Chambers were made before Mr.
Ramirez came to Livingston. He stated that there is a contract in place that can't be broken, and the
building was rented at a low-price because there were improvements done to the building. He indicated
that once the lease is finished or broken, they would look at increasing rent fees.

Council Member Kang informed Mr. Ramirez that he was not trying to blame him; he just wanted to
know why the rent was low.

City Manager Ramirez replied that he was just giving some background.

Mayor Samra asked Mr. Ramirez if he can provide some background on how the City acquired the
parking lot by True Value.

City Manager Ramirez noted that the property by True Value was acquired because there were issues with

the sale of one of the buildings next to it. Litigation was involved, so in order to resolve the dispute and
due to the lack of parking spaces downtown, the City stepped in and acquired the property.

Page 2 of 16



Mayor Samra added that the City already owned half of the parking lot before purchasing the rest of the
property.

City Manager Ramirez stated, yes.
Mayor Samra stated that it was an extension to the parking lot.
City Manager Ramirez stated that was communicated to him.

Mayor Samra pointed out that the purchase was made for downtown parking, not for anybody in
particular.

City Manager Ramirez apologized for not having all of the information. He indicated that he was not in
Livingston at the time, but he recalled all of the statements made.

City Manager Ramirez stated that Ms. Baptista inquired about the property between the Dollar Mart and
the Clinic. He indicated that the City does not own the property; it is privately owned.

Council Member Kang asked if the taco truck next to the council chambers pays rent to the barbershop or
the City.

City Manager Ramirez replied that the taco truck leases the property from the City. They pay $550.00 a
month.

Council Member Kang inquired about the expiration date of the lease.
Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia asked for a copy of the lease agreements for the properties discussed.
City Manager Ramirez stated that he would provide a copy to all council members.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia stated that he could not hear anyone in the background speaking about the
properties.

City Manager Ramirez stated that they were communicating the information to him.

Council Member Aguilar asked if the Senior Center is being utilized at the moment.

City Manager Ramirez replied that the Senior Center is not currently being used.

Council Member Aguilar asked how long is the lease.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that the Senior Center is used from Monday through Friday
from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. by the county senior feeding program. She noted that they pay one thousand
dollars a month for the facility.

Council Member Aguilar asked if the facility is being used right now.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that the Senior Center is used Monday through Friday from

9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. It is also used by the community to have small meetings. She noted that there are
no ongoing community programs other than the feeding program.

Page 3 of 16



Human Resources Coordinator Rasmussen added that the City charges the county $400.00 per month to
use the facility.

Council Member Aguilar asked if anyone can park in the City’s parking lot by True Value.

City Manager Ramirez stated that it’s a public parking lot so anyone can park there.

BUDGET WORKSHOP

1.

Proposed Budget Fiscal Year 2020/2021 — Workshop.

City Manager Ramirez indicated that this is the City’s 3" budget workshop. He thanked everyone
for their patients. This morning, he communicated to the council that there had been an influx of
revenue that was a surprise to the City. The City received a one-time tax benefit from Emerald
Textiles equipment and machinery. The second influx of revenue is about $120,000. The City
received this money because the tax returns were pushed out to a later date.

Finance Director Portillo presented the City’s proposed budget for the fiscal year 2020/2021.

Contract Planner Hatch provided information about the Community Development Department's
budget. He noted that the community development department consists of three related functions
which are building, planning, and engineering. Mr. Hatch provided an overview of residential and
commercial projects for fiscal year 2020/2021. Moreover, he provided some background and
information on the general plan update. Lastly, Mr. Hatch noted that a large revenue source is
building permits and plan check fees for new construction. He said that various other permits,
including planning permits and engineering permits, generate revenue for the City. The fiscal
year 2021 exact numbers result in the income from all fees, covering 89% of the department's
anticipated expenditures. He pointed out that there is a moderate amount of general funds that
support the department's activities.

City Manager Ramirez added that the permit technician currently works five days a week.
However, under the proposed budget, the permit technician workdays would be reduced to three
days of the week. He stated that they need to consider updating planning fees.

Council Member Kang asked how much does the City pay for the permit technician’s position.

City Manager Ramirez stated that right now, the majority of the projects are moving ahead. He
believes that the City can manage to have a permit technician three days out of the week. If the
council decides not to reduce the permits technician’s workdays, the City would have to use
$49,000.

Council Member Kang stated that before they start cutting positions, they need to look at the
City's 40 acres to produce income.

City Manager Ramirez stated that since the 40 acres are part of the wastewater treatment facility,
the generated revenues have to go back into the enterprise fund.

Finance Director Portillo added that the community development department is funded on its
own, which means that any funds they collect covers all of the expenditures that the department
generates. She mentioned that they would be reviewing the user fees and development fees.

Council Member Baptista asked if the $68,000 is part of the general fund.
Page 4 of 16



Finance Director Portillo replied that those funds are general fund support. She noted that
reducing the permit technician hours helps the general fund subsidy from $130,000 to $68,000.

Council Member Aguilar asked if the City is looking at raising the impact fees.
Finance Director Portillo replied that impact fees are different.

City Manager Ramirez added that they are looking at the permit fees and planning fees. They use
impact fees on specific studies. Impact fees can only be used when upsizing or addressing
infrastructure needs. He stated that staff members communicated at one of the workshops that the
planning and permit fees need to be updated.

Council Member Kang asked what days of the week would the permit technician work.
City Manager Ramirez stated Monday, Wednesday, and Friday.

Council Member Kang suggested that the permit technician work three days in a row so that
person can get a second job.

Finance Director Portillo replied that the reason they contract out is to have the flexibility to
reduce or increase hours.

Council Member Aguilar stated that the permit technician’s company would have them work at a
different City on the days they are not needed.

Council Member Aguilar expressed the importance of looking at the impact fees and permit fees.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia asked Randy Hatch if they have considered the road maintenance on the
interstate (on Hammett and Campbell) where the truck stop would be placed.

City Manager Ramirez replied that they asked for Measure V Regional Funding money in
anticipation of not having the same issues as Winton Parkway. They got the expenditure
approved at the last meeting. They are designing and doing a full layout of the intersection on
Campbell and Hammett ahead of time. All development in the area would have to do a traffic
study, and as part of that study, there is a percentage that the developer is responsible for, they
have to pay their fair share towards the improvements.

Contract Planner Hatch added that it’s a key requirement of the planning review process of new
projects. They are going to look at how they impact the City’s existing infrastructure.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit provided information about Parks and Recreation budget. She
also discussed the recreation department’s responsibilities, challenges, and opportunities. She
noted that some of the recreation’s challenges are having adequate facilities for the number of
participants, covering costs on facility rentals, obtaining reasonable and fair fee increases, and
providing quality programming with minimal costs. Moreover, Ms. Benoit noted that the amount
of general funds needed for 2021 is $351,000. She said that the amount increased from last year
because everything is getting expensive. Ms. Benoit pointed out that if they were able to raise
fees, they would offset the amount needed.

City Manager Ramirez added that recreations part-time employee is not reflected in the next
fiscal year budget for recreation. The savings is $19,000.

Page 5 of 16



Council Member Aguilar asked Ms. Benoit to talk about how Covid-19 has impacted their
department and budget.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit stated that Covid-19 has created a situation and has stopped
their programs.

Council Member Aguilar mentioned that the Sweet Potato Festival is on the budget. Moreover, he
stated that since the City is not having some of the programs, he would like to see a reduction in
costs. He asked Ms. Benoit if she is asking for the full amount of some of the programs just in
case they can offer them.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit stated yes.

City Manager Ramirez asked Ms. Benoit when does she decide that a program is self-sustaining
or not self-sustaining.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that private professors do the programs. They come to
an agreement with them and figure out how much they would get paid per hour. Then they work
backward to figure out how many students they would need in order to cover their costs and the
cost of supervisors. The registration forms or blogs provide the minimum amount of students
required for the class to continue. They wait until the last second in hopes that they get a full
class.

Council Member Aguilar asked for realistic numbers on the budget since some sports are not
going to be held.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit stated that they have soccer year around.
Council Member Aguilar stated that considering the current challenges, he does not believe it is
feasible to have two sports simultaneously. Moreover, he pointed out that software supplies are

mentioned in the budget.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that the governor stated that everything would be
opening up next Friday.

Council Member Aguilar pointed out that considering the Covid-19 numbers, it’s unrealistic. He
noted that some items should not be on the budget because it is not going to happen.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit stated that when everything is completely finalized, they will
be making some adjustments.

Council Member Aguilar stated that since there is a surplus, he would like to see accurate
numbers for transparency. Moreover, he expressed his support for recreation and commended

recreation staff for doing a good job.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit stated that they have excellent recreation commissioners
willing to do fundraisers to help some programs.

Council Member Kang stated that at the last workshop, Toni mentioned that if people couldn’t
afford a program, she would pay it. He asked for clarification on how it would be paid.

Page 6 of 16



Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that if someone is struggling, they have some money
within their recreation commission. People donate a few hundred dollars when they pass away.

Council Member Kang inquired about the requirements to prove financial hardship.
Recreation Superintendent Benoit stated that they just work with people that are struggling.
Council Member Baptista asked what the role of a part-time/seasonal recreation leader is.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that some are recreation leaders, baseball umpires,
basketball referees, lifeguards, soccer referees, and concession workers.

Council Member Baptista inquired about the art project for $10,000.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that it’s for the murals, art on utility boxes, and pop-up
art around town.

Council Member Baptista asked if the art projects completed have not been paid.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that they have been paid. She noted that they still need
two to three more of pop-up art that the community is requesting.

Council Member Baptista asked if the community requests a pop-up art does the City use
recreation funds or private funds.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that a private business owner could apply to have a
mural on their wall.

Council Member Aguilar stated that it’s essential for the recreation commission to explore
fundraising options to offset some revenue.

Public Works Director Chavarria thanked the council and the City Manager for allowing him to
continue serving as a Public Works Director for the next three years. Moreover, he provided
information about Public Works funds, challenges, goals, and responsibilities. He noted that the
public works department is responsible for the City’s water systems, wastewater system, storm
drain system, parks, streets, landscaping, municipal buildings, City vehicles, and heavy
equipment. They also oversee the City’s contract for the collection of garbage and recycling
materials. Public Works is tied to the general fund, special revenues, and enterprise fund. Lastly,
he mentioned that public works challenges are the aging of equipment and infrastructure, street
repairs, and new EPA and State Regulations. Mr. Chavarria discussed path improvement, along
with the Child Development Center. They are going to be putting new curb gutter sidewalks from
Walnut to Dwight and Tehama.

Council Member Aguilar asked if the sidewalk would be nicely done with trees.

Public Works Director Chavarria stated that the project is just for the walking path. However,
they can incorporate the trees.

Council Member Aguilar asked if they were going to incorporate crosswalks.

Public Works Director Chavarria stated that they are going to have a lighted crosswalk on
Tehama.

Page 7 of 16



Council Member Aguilar noted that there are no crosswalks on Walnut.
Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia inquired about the policies against people driving on the lawns.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied that by putting a sidewalk curb and gutter, it would act
as a deterrent. He stated that if they continue to have the issues, they can put a post or chains
behind the sidewalk to act as a deterrent.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia stated that he mentioned those options. He suggested putting lighting.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied that they would keep his suggestions in mind, especially
on the next call for projects (Phase 2).

City Manager Ramirez added that he is working with UC Merced as part of the futuristic lighting
institute. Max Foster Park and Arakelian Park are part of the project list. He hopes that they can
get some funding for lighting. However, they are going to look at other options in case they don’t
get the funding.

Public Works Director Chavarria continued with his presentation. He stated that they are going to
be asking for CMAQ funding for phase two of the project. They are going to continue the project
from Tehama Drive past Trigger. They are going to be doing sidewalks and permanent gutter
improvement.

Council Member Kang asked for the cost of watering the basins.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied that he would have to do some research and get back to
him.

Council Member Kang asked for a cost estimate on watering the basins.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied that they have meters, so they know what they put out.
He stated that he would get back to him.

Council Member Kang asked why the City spends so much money on water when it will rain in
November and December. He stated that the grass is going to die either way. He asked for
different solutions.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied that in winter and fall, there is not much watering taking
place. He mentioned that they would be using surface water during the summer and spring.
However, maintenance would need to be provided on the MID canal. He noted that they could
allow the parks to go dormant and reduce the water, but the grass would get yellow.

Council Member Baptista inquired about the sprinkler timers and asked Mr. Chavarria to adjust
some sprinklers because the water is going to the street. She asked about the watering hours and
conserving water.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied that they are not running a large crew. He noted that
they are not employing their part-time employees at the level they usually employ them. For that
reason, it is tough for the staff to get to everything. Moreover, regarding the sprinkler timers and
conserving water, they are going to be more efficient. As part of the lighting and watering
evaluation Train conducted, they have implemented a system. It’s a satellite system that is

Page 8 of 16



managed from one central location. Irrigation is going to be more efficient. Staff is going to have
the ability to lower watering times and detect a leak.

Council Member Aguilar pointed out that the Train system can be remotely controlled.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied yes. He stated that staff is going to be trained to use the
system.

Council Member Aguilar asked how long is the street sweeper going to last. He wondered if they
need to address the issue.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied yes. He stated that they have stopped making the
machine, so parts are hard to find. Mr. Chavarria pointed out that the machine is being repaired at

least once a month. He believes that it will need to be replaced by next year.

Council Member Aguilar asked if there is an opportunity out there for equipment like the one
they have.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied that there are no diesel machines (street sweeper).
Council Member Aguilar inquired about a whole new street sweeper.
Public Works Director Chavarria replied that there is no diesel-powered machine.

City Manager Ramirez asked Anthony to explain the difference between the CNG and diesel
street sweeper.

Public Works Director Chavarria stated that there are no CNG stations near the City. They would
have to send a driver every day to Merced or Turlock.

City Manager Ramirez added that they looked at the possibility of getting a PG&E CNG station
in Livingston. He also inquired about the cost of getting a CNG station. All costs are prohibitive,
and it’s not viable.

Jose Moran asked if the data on the maintenance cost for landscaping on parks and basins be
provided during an open meeting to the general public.

Clerk’s Notes: Council Member Aguilar stepped out of the Council Chambers at 7:42 p.m. but
returned at 7:43 p.m.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied yes.
Jose Moran asked if the information would be for all basins or just one basin.

Council Member Kang replied that he wants all of them. Moreover, he asked if they can turn a
small basin into a dog park.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied that it would save on irrigation. He stated that
maintenance would still be required.

Council Member Kang asked if he could look into it.

Page 9 of 16



Public Works Director Chavarria asked Mr. Kang to be a little more specific on what basin he is
looking at using as a dog park.

Council Member Kang stated that he has no basin in mind.
City Manager Ramirez stated that they have looked at different basins.

Council Member Aguilar stated that the dog park discussion needs to be discussed at a recreation
meeting.

Public Works Director Chavarria asked if they are looking for a dog park locations or just cost-
saving solutions.

Council Member Kang stated that he is looking for cost-saving solutions.
Mayor Samra asked if they would have the information at the next meeting.

Public Works Director Chavarria replied that since they have to look at all the storm drains, it
would take him a little more time.

Mayor Samra informed Mr. Moran that the item would be on the agenda.
Council Member Kang stated for the record that he is recusing himself (from the public safety
budget portion) due to his brother being a sergeant. He noted that even though he has no personal

interest, he would like to recuse himself.

Mayor Samra stated that he would adopt the police budget as a separate action to the rest of the
budget.

Council Member Kang stated that he had contacted FPPC to see if he could be involved in the
public safety report. Mr. Kang is choosing to recuse himself until he receives a response.

Mayor Samra asked if there would be more presentations after the police department’s
presentation.

Finance Director Portillo stated that they are going to be discussing the enterprise fund.

Clerk’s Notes: Council Member Kang left the Council of Chambers at 7:48 p.m. before the public
safety budget was discussed.

Police Chief Soria provided information about the police department’s mission, responsibilities,
goals, and challenges. The police department is made of two department divisions, which are the
operations division and administrative division. Moreover, the police department’s goals are
traffic education, enforcement, crime suppression, and communication.

Mayor Samra pointed out that the number one complaint he is receiving is people speeding on the
streets.

Police Chief Soria noted that by next week they would get the radar trailer out on the streets.

Mayor Samra asked if they were getting a new horse.

Page 10 of 16



Police Chief Soria replied, yes.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia asked if a speeder gets pulled over, does the officer have to show the
speed radar to the person they stopped.

Police Chief Soria replied that it is not required, but they do it. He pointed out that when they stop
a person, they inform the person why they were stopped, and the officer is providing his/her
name.

Police Chief Soria continued with his presentation. He noted that the officers’ coverage ratio in
Livingston is 1.14 per thousand. Mr. Soria compared the ratios with other cities in Merced
County. He stated that back in 2010, they had twenty officers and two lieutenants. The City
Manager at that time opted to get rid of some positions that they never brought back.

Moreover, Mr. Soria indicated that he has been looking for ways to make money and save more
money. They are at the max of fees they can charge. He pointed out that they need more officers,
and eventually, they are going to need to address the issue.

Mayor Samra reiterated that in 2010 they had more officers, but due to the economy, they
reduced officers. He noted that they are about average for the county. However, Mr. Samra
indicated that they need to add more officers. He said that staff members are going to have to
look at how to increase revenue. He noted that they need to get a good development plan.

City Manager Ramirez stated that there are a few things that they can do. He asked Mr. Soria if
they worked with the bargaining groups to switch the current schedule to a 5/8" schedule. That
would give them three officers almost every day, except for one day. As far as solutions to bring
in more revenue, he noted that they could look at public safety measures. He pointed out that they
are still trying to work with Foster Farms on the point of sale because that would give them a big
boost.

Mayor Samra stated that there needs to be more understanding by the community on how the
money is being used.

Council Member Aguilar expressed the importance of hiring more officers in the future. He wants
them to be more creative when it comes to funding the positions. He indicated that he likes the
policing approach that Mr. Soria is taking. Moreover, Mr. Aguilar noted that they need to look at
increasing the impact fees. He asked Mr. Soria if crime and calls have increased or decreased. He
also asked Mr. Soria if there were other underlying issues out there.

Police Chief Soria indicated that domestic violence cases have gone up. They have also had some
shootings.

Council Member Aguilar expressed the importance of public safety in the community. He asked
if the traffic committee is still active.

Police Chief Soria stated, yes.

Council Member Aguilar stated that it would be a good idea to take advantage of the traffic
committee to prevent traffic situations.

City Manager Ramirez shared that in 2011 they started dispatch services to outside agencies.
Right now, they can provide services to at least one more community.

Page 11 of 16



Council Member Baptista inquired about the $96,750 proposal for special projects.

Finance Director Portillo replied that the $95,000 would be allocated to repairs of the police
department. They have been trying to get the project completed for the past six months.

Police Chief Soria indicated that they need to get a new roof because patching up the roof has not
been working.

Council Member Baptista inquired about the development impact fees for facilities and
maintenance. She asked if those funds are included in the repairs.

Finance Director Portillo stated no. She noted that impact fees could only be used for the growth
of the population.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia stated that the City Manager mentioned going back to the bargaining
groups so that the police department can go back to an eight schedule. He said that they have to
consider time off;, sick time, and vacation time when they put three officers on a schedule. If they
go to an eight schedule, it’s going to create more overtime. Moreover, he thanked the Police
Chief for addressing the issues that he brought up.

Mayor Samra asked the City Manager, Finance Director, and Chief of Police to give the council
projections of the eight schedule option. He asked for an analysis.

Police Chief Soria clarified that it’s not an MOU issue.

Mayor Samra stated outside MOU.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia asked if the officers are at a 12 schedule.

Police Chief Soria stated that they are still on a 12 schedule because officers are on leave, but
they will go back to a 4/10 schedule when they come back. He noted that they have two squads,
one squad is on a 4/10 schedule because they have sufficient officers in that squad.

Mayor Samra asked if Council Member Kang was on the phone.

Clerk’s Notes: There was no response from Council Member Kang.

Finance Director Portillo noted that at the last workshop of August 6", a question was brought up
regarding the amount collected through county property taxes that are allocated to the fire
department. Moreover, Ms. Portillo discussed the fire department’s revenue. She noted that in
2020/2021, they are projecting property taxes dedicated or collected for the fire department to be

on the $750,000 projection. It is based on the property tax assessment values of homes.

Clerk’s Notes: Council Member Kang returned after the action was taken at 8:22 p.m. by
teleconference.

City Manager Ramirez added that a substantial amount of revenue is being generated and
provided for the fire department, which is currently going to the county. He would like to get
direction from the council at an appropriate time to look at an analysis or study that looks at the
viability of providing an in-house fire department.

Page 12 of 16



Mayor Samra stated that he and the City Manager have been working on this matter for a while.
Each year the City’s allocation increases, but they still have one firefighter and volunteers. Mr.
Samra stated that they are pretty much subsidizing the county on their services. He said that they
need to get a good analysis to see if they can do the fire department in-house.

City Manager Ramirez stated that he and Council Member Aguilar had discussed the possibility
of hiring a part-time chief and part-time building official.

Council Member Aguilar pointed out that the revenues that are given to the county are going up
each year. There will be a point where it is more cost-effective for the City to have its own fire
department. Mr. Aguilar noted that they have done a lot of leg work and have gathered
information. Moreover, he said that in a couple of months, they are going to have to do an
analysis and discuss the option of an in-house fire department. They also need to work with the
county regarding the tax revenue. Lastly, Mr. Aguilar inquired about the property being sold that
is going to provide revenue to the fire department.

Finance Director Portillo replied that back in 2017-2018, they sold the property on Tehama Dr.
and collected $250,000, which was put on the reserves. The property on Olive Street has been on
the market for $165,000. The City has not received the funds for the property on Olive Street.

Council Member Aguilar asked if the Olive Street's funds would be added to the fire station
capital fund.

Finance Director Portillo stated yes.

Council Member Aguilar pointed out that sooner or later, they are going to need an assessment.
He suggested having meetings with the other fire departments and cities. He suggested getting a
quote from Cal-Fire.

City Manager Ramirez stated that they would be getting proposals to incorporate a complete
synopsis of what the community needs and bring it to the council.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia thanked Mr. Aguilar for pushing the issue. He agrees that they need to do
a study as soon as possible.

Council Member Baptista asked if the fire protection impact fees go towards the new fire station
capital fund.

Finance Director Portillo replied that any items that they can justify as new development or
growth from the population could definitely be pulled to the project.

Finance Director Portillo continued with her presentation. She pointed out that they have a budget
called a free fundamental budget, where they saw revenue spending higher than the previous
years. They made adjustments to expenses. She provided a 5-year budget forecast. Ms. Portillo
stated that they are going to see the expenditures outpacing the revenues throughout the next five
fiscal years. When the expenditures grow, the City will have to tap into the reserves, and at some
point, the City will deplete the 2.7 million dollars in the reserves.

Moreover, Ms. Portillo provided a summary of the general fund, which showed a surplus/deficit
of $279,553. Ms. Portillo provided two recommendations on what can be done to balance the
budget. The first option is freezing vacant positions, implementing furloughs, looking at user
fees, and organizational restructure. The second option is to use the one-time sales tax revenue,

Page 13 of 16



freeze vacant positions, look into the user fees, and organizational restructure. She summarized
how the general plan would be balanced.

City Manager Ramirez added that they would be prudent when moving forward to next year
because they anticipate a decrease, so they are doing everything they can now in preparation for
next year.

Mayor Samra pointed out that he does not believe the $244,000 is there and doesn’t know how
much the City would get or what will happen. He noted that there is not much cushion. He agrees
to the freezing of positions because they do not want to lay off people.

Finance Director Portillo continued with the enterprise fund presentation. She went over the
water, wastewater, sanitation revenue requirements, and the balancing of the enterprise fund. She
pointed out that leaving the rates at the current level would prevent the City from doing any of the
projects scheduled to be paid by the water fund.

City Manager Ramirez added that future projects are tied to compliance with the state.

Finance Director Portillo pointed out that by leaving the wastewater rate the same, the expenses
will outpace the wastewater fund starting year 2021. She noted that the City has a bond in which
the City is required to collect certain levels of revenue. In 2021/2022, the City would be out of
compliance with the rating agencies and bond contingencies. She expressed the importance of
keeping up the pace and meeting the revenue requirements of the operating expenditures, debt
service, contingencies, and any other projects. Moreover, in 2021, the sanitation fund would come
very close to the revenue and expenditures if the rates stay the same. In 2022 they will start
seeing the gap between the revenues collected and cost. She pointed out that the sanitation
revenue is provided by a contract. If the rates don’t keep up with the contract terms, the City
won’t meet the expenses or the levels of expenditures by the money being collected from
services.

City Manager Ramirez pointed out that several users owe quite a bit of money because they are
not cutting utilities or charging late fees. He noted that staff recommends that the council look at
adopting the rates starting January 1, 2021.

Finance Director Portillo pointed out that in order for the City to meet the January 1, 2021
implementation of the rates in the rate study, they have to start next week. She provided the
timeline of the rate implementation. Moreover, she pointed out that to balance the enterprise fund,
they recommend applying the recommended rates in January 2021, starting a new study early,
and freezing vacant positions.

Council Member Aguilar asked if the utility increase has to be adopted or voted at the next
meeting.

City Manager Ramirez replied that they would be sending out the notices if the council approves
it at the next meeting.

Council Member Aguilar went over the rate implementation timeline. He asked when the council
would vote on the rate implementation.

City Manager Ramirez replied on October 20,

Page 14 of 16



Council Member Aguilar went over the staff members’ recommendations to balance the
enterprise fund.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia asked Ms. Portillo if the recommendation of freezing positions still the
same as the last meeting.

Finance Director Portillo stated yes.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia asked if the City is still looking at freezing positions even though it
received unexpected funds.

City Manager Ramirez stated that the difference between the last recommendations to the current
recommendation is the number of freezing positions. They were also looking at furloughs or a
five percent cut. Now that there is an influx of money, the furloughs and the five percent cuts are
being set aside.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia stated that they are never going to get staff back if they freeze positions.
He noted that the City was growing and wondered why they want to freeze police positions. Mr.
Garcia pointed out that they should not freeze any positions at this time. He noted that by not
letting the police department grow, it would make it harder for the Police Chief. He asked Mr.
Ramirez how the City is going to grow with fewer officers on the street.

City Manager Ramirez noted that the recommendations are from him and staff members. He said
that the council would have to make the hard decision on deciding what they want to do. Mr.
Ramirez noted that he believes in his police department. Moreover, he indicated that the City is
at an unprecedented time, so they are trying to be frugal and conservative in fiscal policy. He
stated that the City could certainly hire people, but then they will have to go through the process
of letting people go. Mr. Ramirez noted that the council is the policymaker, and they need to
make a decision. He recommends that they freeze positions, and they wait to see how the overall
outlook would look next year.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia recommended that they don’t freeze positions.

Mayor Samra stated that they would present the budget at the next meeting, and the council can
vote as they wish.

Council Member Aguilar thanked staff members for their hard work on preparing the proposed
budget. He noted that all council members are advocating for what they think is right for the
community.

ADJOURNMENT

The special meeting was adjourned by consensus at 9:28 p.m.

Deputy City Clerk of the City of Livingston

Page 15 of 16



APPROVED:

Mayor or Mayor ProTempore

The written meeting minutes reflect a summary of specific actions taken by the City Council. They do not necessarily
reflect all of the comments or dialogue leading up to the action. All meetings are digitally recorded and are an
official record of the meeting’s proceedings. Digitally recorded verbatim minutes are available, upon request, and

may be obtained at Livingston City Hall.

Page 16 of 16



MEETING MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING
LIVINGSTON CITY COUNCIL
SEPTEMBER 1, 2020

A Regular Meeting of the Livingston City Council was held on September 1, 2020, in the City Council
Chambers with Mayor Samra presiding.

REGULAR MEETING

Mayor Samra called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance to the flag was recited.

ROLL CALL

Mayor Gurpal Samra

Mayor Pro-Tem Raul Garcia (via Teleconference)
Council Member Maria Baptista

Council Member Juan Aguilar
Council Member Gagandeep Kang

XXX

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

None.

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REPORTS

Supervisor Rodrigo Espinoza Announcements and Reports.
None.

City Staff Announcements and Reports.

None.

Page 1 of 16



City Manager Announcements and Reports.

City Manager Ramirez stated that he has been working closely with the Village Apartments. A workshop
was done regarding the Swainson’s hawk issue. The council gave direction to Mr. Ramirez to work with
the project owners. After extensive talk and education, the project owners decided to elevate their
negative declaration to a full EIR. The project owners are making contact with the base camp
environment to initiate the full EIR. After the EIR is completed, they will be coming back to the council,
and at that time, they will have to come up with the findings for an exception and further direction.
Moreover, he made the council aware that Monica sent them a copy of the letter received from Livingston
Community Health regarding vaping and tobacco use.

City Council Members’ Announcements and Reports.

Council Member Baptista pointed out that the census numbers are meager. She asked the council what
they are doing. Ms. Baptista stated that she has gone out and spoken to some of the farmers, packing
sheds, and have handed out flyers. She has also gone to church services to make announcements of the
census. She asked why they were not more aggressive from the beginning.

City Manager Ramirez stated that from the onset, they had their Representative Patricia Ramos come to
the City about two to three times to put together a complete count committee, but it never materialized. So
they went to the next step, which was to use the social media platform. They received bingo sets from the
Latino Community Foundation. He said that he asked for materials, posters, shirts, and trinkets to entice
people and hand it out to different organizations. He noted that they had Ms. Ramos come back to provide
more information on the census. The City continues to use social media platforms. He pointed out that a
caravan was done as well.

Council Member Aguilar stated that there is more they can do with the census. He noted that the census
percentages are concerning. He informed Ms. Baptista that he is willing to work with her if she decides to
do the caravan again.

Council Member Baptista stated that all of the council need to step up. She pointed out that they only
have one month to make residents aware that they need to count themselves in the census.

Mayor’s Announcements and Reports

Mayor Samra gave his condolences to Anthony Chavarria’s family. He noted that Mr. Chavarria’s mother
passed away today.

CITIZEN COMMENTS
Mayor Samra opened Citizen Comments at 7:17 p.m.

Michelle (did not provide her last name) stated that certain officials recuse themselves of certain decisions
due to a conflict of interest. She noted that Council Member Aguilar has not recused himself of any
decisions regarding the fire department. Michelle asked Mr. Aguilar if he is a volunteer firefighter for
Merced County and asked why he would not rescues himself. Moreover, she stated that the City Manager
wants to save money by putting the resident’s safety on the back burner. Michelle also noted that there
have been multiple shootings this year, with three occurring in the last 30 days. According to California
transparency, she stated that the City Manager reported a quarter-million dollars in salary and benefits for
the year 2018. She said that if the council wants to save money, they should look into the City Manager’s
contract. Lastly, she indicated that the officers are overworked and understaffed. She asked the Police

Page 2 of 16



Chief if he needs the positions that the council is trying to freeze. She asked the Mayor and Council to
please review the general budget before approving it.

Council Member Aguilar pointed out that he is not an employee and has no financial interest in the City.
He noted that he is a paid-on-call firefighter for the Merced County Fire Department.

City Manager Ramirez stated that as it relates to his contract, that is up to the council to decide. In regards
to the general fund, they are making recommendations, but the council has the option of taking a different
direction. Moreover, in relation to the shootings, they are doing everything they can to balance the
department's safety and financial well-being.

Police Chief Soria stated that he would take them back right now. He said that it would help contain
crime.

Council Member Kang asked how many officers do they have working.
Police Chief Soria stated that the average is two.
Council Member Kang stated that while one officer is taking a person to jail, one officer is left.
Police Chief Soria stated, yes.
Mayor Samra closed Citizen Comments at 7:22 p.m., as there were no further comments from the public.
CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approval of Warrant Register Dated August 27, 2020.
2. Approval of Minutes of Meeting Held on July 7, 2020.
3. Approval of Minutes of Meeting Held on August 4, 2020.
4. Approval of Minutes of Meeting Held on August 6, 2020.

Motion: M/S Aguilar/Garcia to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion carried 5-0-0 by the
following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Members: Samra, Kang, Baptista, Garcia, and Aguilar
NOES: Council Members: None
ABSENT: Council Members: None

DISCUSSION AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS

5. Resolution Adopting the Budget and Appropriating Revenue for Fiscal Year 2020/21 and Setting
the GANN Appropriation Limits for Fiscal Year 2020/21.

City Manager Ramirez stated that they are going to go over the procedures and then give some
direction.

Finance Director Portillo stated that they sectioned the budget into two parts. The first part is
public safety.

Page 3 of 16



City Manager Ramirez stated that they are going to do the police department’s budget review
first.

Council Member Kang stated that he would like to recuse himself from the public safety budget
review because his brother is a sergeant.

Clerk’s Notes: Council Member Kang left the Council of Chambers at 7:27 p.m. before the public
safety budget was discussed.

Finance Director Portillo introduced the public safety budget.
Council Member Aguilar asked how many police positions is the City going to freeze.

Finance Director Portillo replied that it would be one police officer, one dispatcher, and a Captain
position.

Council Member Aguilar noted that there are concerns due to the current environment and
increase of shootings. He indicated that the City needs to have more bodies patrolling. Mr.
Aguilar stated that they don’t want to land on a deficit and start laying off people or reduce
programs. He said that the council could work with the Police Chief and City Manager to develop
a plan of action.

Council Member Baptista stated that in the past, there has been a trend that once they freeze a
position, it never comes back. She noted that there has to be some incentive for the officers to
stay in Livingston; otherwise, they will leave. Ms. Baptista stated that they could help support
younger officers who come into Livingston and have them trained.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia agreed with Mr. Aguilar and Ms. Baptista. He asked what the word freeze
means to Ms. Portillo and Mr. Ramirez.

City Manager Ramirez replied that the freezing of positions is referenced to this fiscal year. It
would not carry on to the next fiscal year. He stated that if the council is looking at making some
police department adjustments by hiring, they would have to bring funds from other parts of the
general budget to balance the budget.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia asked Mr. Ramirez if they have thought about reserved officers since they
don’t get paid in the City.

City Manager Ramirez stated that was correct.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia stated that it would be good savings. He suggested a part-time police
officer.

Police Chief Soria stated that he would definitely bring in reserves. He noted that he has a few
applicants, and with the approval of the City Manager, he can start the recruitment process.

City Manager Ramirez asked Mr. Soria what else would he need.
Police Chief Soria stated that they are okay with the equipment they have right now for this year
and probably next year. After that, they are probably going to be adding new vehicles to the

budget. He indicated that they need one vehicle right away. Mr. Soria also noted that they are up
to par on the officer’s equipment.

Page 4 of 16



Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia stated that there would be two officers going to one call instead of one
officer by having reserves.

Mayor Samra stated that they would all like to hire more officers, but is not sure if he wants to
hire more officers at this time. He likes the reserve program idea. Moreover, concerning the
incentive question from Ms. Baptista, Mr. Samra noted that they did give a little raise to the
employees, including the officers, to better support themselves and chose the City. He pointed out
that the council does do everything they can to support their officers. Lastly, Mr. Samra
mentioned that the shootings are a concern, but he is unsure if another officer would help. He
pointed out that all cities have seen an increase in shootings.

Council Member Baptista pointed out that most people committing crimes in the City are from
out of town. Moreover, she expressed the need for another officer.

Mayor Samra replied that he is not saying that they will not hire officers. However, he is looking
at what the budget can support. Mr. Samra stated that the reserve program is an excellent idea. He
pointed out that he is the number one supporter of public safety. Mr. Samra indicated that the
revenue has not kept up with expenses. He said that they need to work on promoting economic
growth. Moreover, Mr. Samra indicated that he would like the City to have their own professional
fire department one day. Lastly, he stated that he would like to make a motion to give staff
direction to work on the reserve program.

Council Member Aguilar noted that the reserve program is a temporary solution. He stated that
with some kind of incentive or pay, they could attract and retain officers. Moreover, Mr. Aguilar
praised Mr. Soria for the community policing. Lastly, he pointed out that the City needs more
officers. He suggested they have some sort of plan of action in order soon.

Mayor Samra asked if an officer leaves are they able to fill that position.

Finance Director Portillo stated yes. She said that they are only freezing the positions that are
currently vacant.

Mayor Samra stated that freezing means that they will not be hiring any new officers at this time.
Mayor Samra opened Public Comments at 7:59 p.m.

Steve Reynolds inquired about the property in Olive. He asked if the City has received funds for
that property.

City Manager Ramirez replied that the Olive property was explicitly designated for the fire
department. Any funds generated from that property are going to be allocated to the fire
department. He indicated that the property has been sold and is currently in escrow.

Steve Reynolds stated that the property was sold seven months ago.

City Manager Ramirez replied yes. He stated that it is taking so long because someone else
purchased the property, but it didn’t close escrow, so it was sold again, and there were some

negotiations.

Jose Moran, P.O. Box 847, asked if the City has considered a patrol volunteer program and
inquired about the cost. He also asked how much would a part-time officer cost. Mr. Moran noted

Page 5 of 16



that safety is a priority for everyone, but they need to be fiscally responsible. Moreover, he asked
Mr. Soria if they would provide professional service to residents in Livingston. He also stated that
they need to consider how much of a difference it would make if they hire another officer.

Police Chief Soria stated that they do have a volunteer program. He noted that they have two
elderly volunteers, so they have told them to stay home because they don’t want to risk their
health. Moreover, Mr. Soria stated that adding another officer won’t hurt.

Jose Moran asked what would be the cost of a part-time officer.

Finance Director Portillo stated that a full-time officer with benefits is about $90,000 to $95,000 a
year. A part-time officer would be about $35,000 to $40,000.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia stated that in regard to Mr. Moran's question about what difference one
officer would make on the street. He said that when they pick up the phone and dial 911 for

assistance, that can make a difference.

Julio Valadez asked if officers would do more over time if they didn’t hire an additional officer.
He also wondered if over-time would cost more than hiring another officer.

Police Chief Soria stated that their over-time would reduce.

Julio Valadez asked if over-time would cost more than hiring another officer.

Mayor Samra asked how much is the police department budgeting on over-time for this year.
Finance Director Portillo replied that within the general fund, it is $125,000.

Mayor Samra stated that if they hire another officer, they would still have over-time.

Police Chief Soria stated that over-time would reduce. However, they will have to pay for
overtime because the officers can be called to court, special events, or have to cover someone
else. He pointed out that there is always going to be over-time.

Julio Valadez asked if it was $125,000 for the whole City.

Finance Director Portillo stated that it’s for the police department.

Julio Valadez asked what is the cost to have a full-time officer.

Finance Director Portillo stated that it’s about $90,000 to $95,000.

Julio Valadez asked what the recommended ratio of officers to the population is.

Finance Director Portillo replied that the ratio is 1.5 officers per thousand, and the current rate is
1.15.

Mayor Samra asked Ms. Portillo if she could read the other cities’ ratio.

Finance Director Portillo read the ratios for Los Banos, Merced, Turlock, and Atwater.

Page 6 of 16



Julio Valadez stated that the City is on average. He asked if they know of any police officers
interested in the reserve program.

Mayor Samra replied that after the budget, the Police Chief and City Manager are going to bring a
proposal for an unpaid reserve program.

Julio Valadez asked if they know of any officers interested in the program.

Police Chief Soria stated that the two reserves officers have other jobs. They have to put in 16
hours a month. They are not interested in a full-time job or to get paid.

Julio Valadez asked if officers would be interested in doing the program if they make it widely
available.

Police Chief Soria stated, yes. He said that they have a few applications from reserve officers
waiting to go through the process.

Julio Valadez stated that the City needs to do what it can to have the right amount of officers. He
said that this week a 10 to 11-year-old boy got jumped while walking with his two sisters. There
was no report done because they did not feel that anything would be done about it.

Leticia Vasquez asked the Police Chief if the officers are working eight-hour shifts or twelve-
hour shifts. Moreover, she stated that two recommendations were provided, one from August 6th
and the other from August 25th, and asked which recommendation the council would choose.

Finance Director Portillo replied that on the August 6th proposal, the City recommended
implementing furloughs, freezing positions, looking into user fees, and organizational
restructuring. During workshop no. 3 on August 25th, the furlough option was no longer an
option. Instead, they are using a one-time fund from sales tax to balance the budget. Also,
freezing vacant positions is still part of staff reccommendation along with user fees and
organizational restructure. She pointed out that the difference is that they are no longer proposing
to implement furloughs on city staff.

Mike Mendoza stated that a full-time officer costs $95,000 per year. He noted that with 14
thousand residents, including children, that equals about seven dollars per resident. Mr. Mendoza
said that he has five people in his household, and $35.00 a year is okay with him. He would pay
the money for an extra officer to protect people and towns.

Police Chief Soria stated that they run a 4/10™ shift. Officers work four days and are off for three
days. He noted that it’s in their contract so they can’t deviate unless they go below twelve
officers, and then they can go to a 5/8" schedule. Mr. Soria pointed out that one squad is at a 12
shift because they had officers on leave. He indicated that they just got one officer back, and the
other officer is coming back in a few weeks. Both squads will be going back to the 4/10t
schedule.

Mayor Samra stated that in regards to Mr. Mendoza’s suggestion on paying additional money, the
only way the City can do that is to do some type of sales tax or per property type thing that

requires elections.

Mayor Samra closed Public Comments at 8:22 p.m., as there were no further comments from the
public.

Page 7 of 16



Council Member Aguilar asked if they are voting on the section separately from the rest of the
budget.

Finance Director Portillo stated yes. She noted that the council would be voting in sections.
Mayor Samra stated that they would go ahead and adopt the police department's budget.

Council Member Aguilar asked if they would have something stated that they need a plan of
action for the reserve program and analysis of having a part-time person versus over-time.

Mayor Samra stated that they should go ahead and pass the police department’s budget portion
with the conditions.

Council Member Baptista asked for clarification on how it’s being broken down.

Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia stated that he does not agree on adopting this part of the budget right now
without seeing all the numbers on paper.

Council Member Aguilar asked if there would be a problem if they hold off on this portion
(police department budget) in order to get an analysis at the next meeting and move forward with
the rest of the budget. He asked if the budget needs to be passed as a whole in one meeting.

Finance Director Portillo replied that the fiscal year started on July 1%. The City is two months
into the fiscal year, and they need a guiding document to move forward with many of the other
projects they have included in the budget. If they don’t have a document approved by the council,
they are unable to move forward. Moreover, she stated that the analysis would take some time,
and they don’t want to delay much farther the adoption of the budget. However, she said that the
council could adopt the budget and then staff members would return with the analysis. At that
point, the council can recommend using additional funds from the general fund, or staff could
come back with a recommendation of identified funding.

Council Member Aguilar asked if the budget document can be changed after they approve it.
Finance Director Portillo stated yes. She noted that they could amend the document.

Council Member Aguilar verified that they could change the police budget at a later time. He also
clarified that staff recommend the council to pass the budget now so that projects could move
forward.

Finance Director Portillo stated yes.

Mayor Samra made a motion to adopt the public safety budget as proposed by staff with the
condition of having staff come back to them with choices for additional reserve officers or part-
time officers, and with other recommendations.

Council Member Aguilar stated that he second it with a clear understanding that they want the
requested information to be provided to them as soon as possible. Based on discussions, he
believes that most of the council are interested in seeing the numbers and having a reserve
program and hiring a part-time police officer. Mr. Aguilar made sure that the public safety budget
can be changed in the future based on what information is provided. He pointed out that they need
to pass the item for other businesses to continue in this department.

Page 8 of 16



Council Member Baptista asked if freezing of the vacant positions is part of the public safety
budget motion.

Mayor Samra stated, yes.

Council Member Aguilar asked Ms. Baptista if she wanted to make a change to the motion. He
informed her that this is her opportunity to voice her concerns.

Council Member Baptista noted that they are currently not in a position to hire, so it does not
make sense to freeze positions if they are not going to hire.

Mayor Samra stated that the motion simply says that they are passing the budget, and then staff
members will make recommendations to them. They can accept the recommendations to leave the
document as is.

Motion: M/S Samra/Aguilar to adopt Resolution No. 2020-54, Adopting the Public Safety Funds
for Fiscal Year 2020/2021. The motion carried 3-1-0-1 by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Members: Baptista, Aguilar, and Samra
NOES: Council Members: Mayor Pro-Tem Garcia
ABSENT: Council Members: None

ABSTAIN: Council Members: Council Member Kang

Clerk’s Notes: Council Member Kang returned after the action was taken at 8:33p.m.

Finance Director Portillo introduced the second section of the budget, which is the administration
budget. It encompasses elected officials, human resources, City Manager, City Clerk, finance
department, recreation department, public works department, community development
department, and engineering. Staff provided two recommendations in order to balance the general
fund budget. The first recommendation presented on workshop two on August 6" recommended
the freezing of vacant positions, furloughs, looking at user fees (recreation), and organizational
restructure. The second recommendation presented on workshop three on August 25th
recommended using the one-time sales tax, freeze vacant positions (police, recreation, and public
works), looking at user fees (recreation), and organizational restructures.

Council Member Aguilar mentioned that it is a challenging situation to freeze position and
increase user fees. He stated that they are trying to stay hopeful that things will turn around, but
they are financially responsible.

Council Member Kang stated that they mentioned cutting hours from the planner or building
technician at the last workshop. He asked if they are still considering cutting hours on the planner

or building technician.

Finance Director Portillo mentioned that it is part of the community development budget. It has
already been budgeted into the community development budget.

Council Member Kang inquired about funds that recreation is not using. He asked if the
department is going to be $70,000 or $80,000 in surplus.

Finance Director Portillo stated that they would not be in a surplus.

Page 9 of 16



Council Member Kang asked where the $50,000 for the sweet potato festival is going to be
placed.

Finance Director Portillo replied that she believes that it is part of the $73,000 that will be
reduced from that budget, and it won’t cost the general fund.

City Manager Ramirez stated that when they plan a specific event, they have a revenue-
generating component. He inquired about the sweet potato festival.

Clerk’s Notes: Council Member Aguilar left the Council Chambers at 8:42 p.m. and returned at
8:44 p.m.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that it was removed from the budget. The only thing
that was not removed from the current budget was the expense side. She noted that the only true
savings would be the sweet potato festival.

Council Member Baptista asked if the increase of recreation fees are going to be presented to
them at a later time.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that around January, they would try to bring a
recommendation for increases. She stated that the item was brought up at a previous meeting, and
it did not turn out to be a positive meeting because of the elections coming up. She noted that
people were not for having any increases.

Council Member Aguilar noted that they discussed the increase of fees in the past but clarified
that, it is not about an election. He stated that he is a big supporter of recreation, and he believes
every child should have an opportunity to participate. Mr. Aguilar mentioned that times are
different, and sometimes they need to consider other options to benefit the whole City and its
operation. He is open to increasing fees on outsiders. Moreover, Mr. Aguilar stated that people in
the community are saying that the council wanted to cut programs or the recreation budget; he
noted that he does not recall ever voicing that information. He suggested that they get a part-time
grant writer to look for financial opportunities.

Mayor Samra opened Public Comments at 8:47 p.m.

Wapinder Kang pointed out that it would be more beneficial for the City to discuss numbers
before approving the budget than discussing numbers and raises after the budget has been
approved. That way, they know what their income would be. He pointed out that he is not for
cutting positions because they are trying to grow the town, and if they get rid of certain positions,
it will slow the process down, and it would not be good for the City. He mentioned that they need
to look at other resources.

Jason Roth asked what the cost comparisons of surrounding cities are and how does it differ.
Mayor Samra asked Mr. Roth if he is asking about recreation costs.

Jason Roth said, yes.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that they surveyed all the surrounding areas. In that
survey, they were thirty to fifty percent lower than all the surrounding areas.

Page 10 of 16



Jason Roth thanked Ms. Benoit for her answer. He noted that Livingston has room to grow and
expand its fees.

Jose Moran, P.O. Box 847, asked what was the previous fiscal budget for the recreation
department compared to the current fiscal budget. He also asked if the current part-time positon in
recreation is vacant. Mr. Moran believes that the recreation department offers great service to the
community, and it’s an investment for the kids in the community.

Finance Director Portillo replied that last year's expenditures for the recreation program were
$532,000. This year's expenditures are $485,000. She noted that revenues are not being collected
since the programs are at a stop. However, expenditures are still stagnant because they still have
to pay for the facilities, maintenance, and personnel. Moreover, Ms. Portillo pointed out that the
position that they want to freeze is vacant.

Wapinder Kang asked when was the last time the position was filled.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that the employee left when City Hall shut down due to
Covid-19. She noted that the employee was a student and was working part-time.

Council Member Aguilar pointed out that the sweet potato festival is still in the budget.

Finance Director Portillo replied that the expenditure part is still reflected as an expense.
Wapinder Kang stated that he did not get his question answered.

Mayor Samra asked Wapinder Kang to repeat the question.

Wapinder Kang inquired about the increase of fees and asked why they would budget for
something that has already passed. He asked when was the last time the part-time position in
recreation was filled.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that the part-time position was filled until mid-March.
Wapinder Kang asked if they have the books to prove it.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied yes.

Wapinder Kang asked if they are planning on raising the fees.

Mayor Samra replied that staff members have not proposed new fees.

Wapinder Kang stated that he thought it was brought up to the council once before.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit stated that everything across the board was going to increase to
a reasonable amount.

Wapinder Kang stated that he would like an exact dollar amount.
Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that it would be an amount that the council approves.

Wapinder Kang asked who would make the recommendation.

Page 11 of 16



Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that the recreation commission would make the
recommendation.

Wapinder Kang mentioned that all council members are for raising fees. He asked if there was
any way to start the process as soon as possible to see how much money would be generated.

Recreation Superintendent Benoit replied that they have the information ready; they are just
waiting for the proper time to bring it to the council.

Wapinder Kang asked if it can be put on next week’s agenda.

Leticia Vasquez verified if they are proposing to freeze the part-time position that was filled in
March. She asked what the other recommendations are.

Finance Director Portillo replied that besides the freezing of the positions that are currently
vacant, they proposed to balance the general fund budget by using the one-time sales tax fund.
They recommend looking into the user fees (recreation and community development fees), which
will come to the council for review and approval. The last item they are recommending is
organizational restructures.

Gabriel Salazar stated that the best decision is to freeze positions and possibly use the one-time
sales tax funds. He does not believe it is an excellent time to raise fees for Parks and Recreation.

Julio Valadez agrees that the recreation department should have the most funds to keep kids off
the streets. He said that if kids are kept busy, they will not get in trouble because they are
involved in a recreation activity. Mr. Valadez believes recreation should have more funding
available to them. Moreover, he shared how recreation helped his son. Lastly, he mentioned that
Livingston should not compare its fees to Modesto, Turlock, or other cities with a higher income
level.

Leticia Vasquez stated that she is a mental health therapist and has worked with kids. She noted
that many kids have been involved in recreational activities, and feedback shows that the program
is meaningful because they build relationships.

Julio Valadez thanked the council for allowing Ms. Vasquez to speak. He shared that his son has
missed much social interaction because of his situation. He noted that his son is physically and
medically okay now, but mentally that is where their issues are at the moment.

Jose Moran noted that ninety percent of the kids are on free meals, which means they are low
income. He said that the council should consider the information when they think about raising
the fees.

Mayor Samra closed Public Comments at 9:07 p.m., as there were no further comments from the
public.

Council Member Baptista showed her appreciation to the recreation department for the programs
and events they provide. She noted that they all need to get together to help the recreation
department generate funds through sponsorships and donations. Ms. Baptista believes that they
need to work with the schools because the recreation department pays for some of the facility
rentals. She expressed the importance of the community supporting the recreation department.
Moreover, Ms. Baptista stated that she is for raising recreation fees. Furthermore, she would like

Page 12 of 16



to see the youth volunteer in part-time positions and seasonal recreation positions. She said that
they need parents to step up and be coaches.

Council Member Aguilar asked if this motion includes the workshop recommendation for user
fees and recreation increases.

Finance Director Portillo stated that they are asking for the green light to bring back this item to
look into the user fees for recreation.

Council Member Kang asked if the company is okay with cutting the permit technician’s hours.

Finance Director Portillo stated that the City has a contract with the company, so it has flexibility.
The contract says that if there is not enough funds available, the City can make adjustments to the
hours.

Council Member Kang stated that if they cut the permit technician’s hours and the company
decides to leave, what are the chances of finding another contractor cheaper than them.

Finance Director Portillo replied that the company has a contract to provide the City with service.
She stated that in the event they decide to walk away, there is a breach of contract. She noted that
the company would provide the City with a permit technician.

Council Member Kang asked how would the decreased hours of the permit technician affect new
projects.

City Manager Ramirez pointed out that he needs to manage more with less. He stated that he is
going to do everything possible so that nothing falls through the cracks. Mr. Ramirez noted that if
the council decides to fund the position entirely, that money needs to be added back into the
budget. He pointed out that the funds are not in the budget. Mr. Ramirez asked how much is the
savings.

Finance Director Portillo stated $49,000.

Council Member Kang asked if they can use the money from the forty-nine acres.

City Manager Ramirez replied that it would be great to get more funding for the acreage over by
the wastewater treatment plant. However, Mr. Ramirez noted that it is not easy because if
irrigation is involved, they would have to enter into an irrigation and water runoff program. He
pointed out that the money generated for the acreage belongs to the wastewater treatment facility,
so they can’t use it for the general fund. Moreover, the City does not have a structure in place for
rental fees with the parking lot.

Council Member Kang inquired about the parking lot next to the dollar store.

City Manager Ramirez stated that the RAN Clinic privately owns the parking lot.

Mayor Samra asked if anyone wants to second the motion with the clarification that the user fees
for recreation are coming back to the council for review and adoption.

Council Member Aguilar asked if they can do a budget amendment.

Mayor Samra stated, yes.

Page 13 of 16



Motion: M/S Samra/Aguilar to adopt Resolution No. 2020-55, Adopting All Funds Except Public
Safety for the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 and Setting the GANN Appropriation Limits for Fiscal Year
2020/21. The motion carried 3-2-0-0 by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Council Members: Baptista, Aguilar, and Samra
NOES: Council Members: Kang and Garcia

ABSENT: Council Members: None

ABSTAIN: Council Members: None

Receive Direction from the Council to Initiate the Prop 218 Notice Process for the Proposed
Water and Wastewater Rate Increases. This is Only Related to the Initiation of the Process,
Specifically the Sending Out of the 45-Day Notice Advising Tenants and Property Owners of the
Proposed Rate Increases, Protest Procedures and the Date of the Public Hearing. No Rates Will
be Imposed or Decided on at this Meeting.

City Manager Ramirez introduced this item. He noted that the rate increase was delayed due to all
the dynamics that occurred. Then the council decided to push-off the rate increase to August.
Moreover, he pointed out that the only change to the rate increase is the implementation date. He
indicated that the fees that were going to be adopted in May (waster and wastewater) are being
pushed out to January 1*. He noted that there is no rate increase for the solid waste that would
start on January 1%, 2021. Mr. Ramirez went over the rate implementation timeline.

Council Member Aguilar indicated that he advocated having the item put on the agenda to discuss
options and actions that the council could take. He noted that this item is a tough topic to discuss
because there is a lot of financial instability in the community. A few community members
informed him that this item could be detrimental to their well-being and livelihood. Moreover, he
asked how it would affect the City if they push-off the item longer.

City Manager Ramirez replied that the City spent close to fifty-thousand dollars in the whole
process to date.

Council Member Baptista noted that times are hard, but she would leave it up to the public to
provide their concerns and petitions. She stated that they need to move forward with the item that
has cost the City about fifty thousand dollars.

Mayor Samra opened and closed Public Comments at 9:31 p.m., as there were no comments from
the public.

Council Member Aguilar asked Mayor Samra if he is going to comment on the item.

Mayor Samra stated that he was waiting for everyone else to comment.

Council Member Aguilar asked Mayor Samra if he had nothing to comment on this item.

Mayor Samra replied that the public is in a very tough situation right now, and to add this (rate
increase) is not appropriate at this time. He believes they should wait at least a few months,
maybe at the beginning of the year, to review it again.

Council Member Aguilar asked Mr. Ramirez what would happen to the study if they push the

item out a few more months. He wondered what the consequences would be and how it could
affect City operations.

Page 14 of 16



City Manager Ramirez replied that the further they push it out, the more difficult it will be for the
residents because there would be a higher increase. He indicated that the timeline has now been
shortened in terms of the five year forecast because they will have to come back earlier than
anticipated to have another study.

Council Member Aguilar stated that he understands that there is a need based on the study. He
noted that they are going to have to take action on the item. Mr. Aguilar indicated that it is bad
timing because a lot of people have lost their jobs or their hours were reduced. He was hoping the
community members would voice their opinion. Mr. Aguilar has heard in the community that
people are not excited about the rate increase. They would like other solutions to supplement the
utility rate increase in a different way. He pointed out that he cannot justify the increase in the
rates at this time because of the current situation. Moreover, he thanked the Utility Stakeholders
Committee for their hard work.

Council Member Baptista asked what the increase in dollars is. She wondered if it would be a
five-dollar increase for water for 2021 and another slight increase the following year. She pointed
out that it is a small increase starting in January.

Mayor Samra noted that over the years, the City has done things to increase rates. He indicated
that they did this process in the community once before, but it did not work out. Mr. Samra noted
that citizens get it, and back then, they supported it, but they are also asking for a break because
they are unsure of what is going on. He expressed the importance of working with the
community.

Council Member Baptista motioned to Initiate the Prop 218 Notice Process for the Proposed
Water and Wastewater Rate Increases. This is Only Related to the Initiation of the Process,
Specifically the Sending Out of the 45-Day Notice Advising Tenants and Property Owners of the
Proposed Rate Increases, Protest Procedures and the Date of the Public Hearing. No Rates Will
be Imposed or Decided on at this Meeting. This motion failed due to a lack of a second.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned by consensus at approximately 9:41 p.m.

Deputy City Clerk of the City of Livingston

Page 15 of 16



APPROVED:

Mayor or Mayor ProTempore

The written meeting minutes reflect a summary of specific actions taken by the City Council. They do not
necessarily reflect all of the comments or dialogue leading up to the action. All meetings are digitally
recorded and are an official record of the meeting’s proceedings. Digitally recorded verbatim minutes
are available, upon request, and may be obtained at Livingston City Hall.

Page 16 of 16



STAFF REPORT

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution Authorizing the City Manager or Designee to Execute a Contract
Amendment with Hansford Economic Consulting for the Utilities Rate Study
Development, as Approved by the City Attorney

MEETING DATE:  October 20, 2020
PREPARED BY: Vanessa L. Portillo, Finance Director
REVIEWED BY: Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that City Council authorize the City Manager or designee to execute the contract
amendment to continue the Utilities Rate Study Development, as Approved by the City Attorney.

BACKGROUND:

Utility Rate Studies are conducted every five (5) years to ensure the fiscal health of the Enterprise Funds
(Water, Sewer, and Sanitation). In May 2019, the City Council selected Hansford Economic Consulti

. to conduct the Utlies Rate Study. (EhE neGulls GF e RAte SEudy wee pesentéa to Council 60)
— The Rate Study findings recommended increasing water and sewer rates starting on May
2020. As part of the Prop 2018 process, public notices were mailed to all utility customers and a public
hearing date was set for March 17, 2020. ﬂ
was postponed until further notice.

The Rate Study uses historical data along with a comprehensive cluster of growth factors in order to project

the funds’ needs at a certain time and for a certain ieriod. Given the current circumstances,

Performing the initial rate study has given Hansford
Economic Consulting significant knowledge of the City’s background and infrastructure needs as well as
the expertise to recalculate the City’s utility rates within the timeframe requested by the City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Utility Rate review will require a budget amendment to increase appropriations in the amount of
$22,200 in the Enterprise Funds (Water, Sewer, and Sanitation).

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution Authorizing the City Manager or Designee to Execute a Contract Amendment with
Hansford Economic Consulting for the Utilities Rate Study Development
2. Hansford Economic Consulting Proposal


Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight


RESOLUTION NO. 2020-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OR DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
AMENDMENT WITH HANSFORD ECONOMIC CONSULTING FOR THE UTILITIES

RATE STUDY DEVELOPMENT, AS APPROVED BY CITY ATTORNEY

WHEREAS, the City of Livingston initiated a contract with Hansford Economic Consulting Inc.
in the amount of $55 thousand in May 2019 for Utilities Rate Study development;

WHEREAS, the rate study findings recommended a rate increase effective May 2020 for the Water
and Sewer funds; and

WHEREAS, initial findings were presented to Council in December 2019 and a public hearing
was set for March 2020; and

WHEREAS, the public hearing was postponed due to the pandemic outbreak; and

WHEREAS, the Utilities Rate Study findings need to be recalculated to implement new rates by
Spring 2021; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Livingston may adjust the overall appropriation levels
in each funds at any time during the Fiscal Year by action to amend the budget; and

WHEREAS, a budget amendment increasing appropriations by $22,200 is needed to support the
revision of the Rate Study; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Department will make the appropriate adjustments to the budget as
authorized by City Council; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Livingston, State
of California that:

1. The proposal of $22,200 for the revision of the Utilities Rate Study is accepted.

2. The City Manager or designee is hereby authorized and directed to execute an agreement
in the form presented herewith for and on behalf of the City.

Passed and adopted this 20" day of October, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gurpal Samra, Mayor
of the City of Livingston

Page 1 of 2



ATTEST:

I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed and adopted at a
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Livingston this 20" day of October, 2020.

Monica Cisneros, Deputy City Clerk
of the City of Livingston

Page 2 of 2



{ ) < PO Box 10384 Phone: 530-412-3676
Nt \ Truckee, CA 96162 Email: catherine@hansfordecon.com

September 16, 2020

Mr. Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager
City of Livingston

1416 C Street

Livingston, CA 95334

Subject: Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste Rate Studies, Community Outreach and
Implementation Services for the City of Livingston

Dear Jose:

It has been a great privilege to work on the City of Livingston (City) utility rates study. HEC's
scope of services and budget was approved May 2019. In December 2019, HEC presented the
final rate study to the City Council and a public hearing date of March 17, 2020 was set. Public
notices required by Proposition 218 were prepared and mailed to all utility customers of the
City with translations in Spanish and Punjabi. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the public
hearing had to be postponed.

At its September 1, 2020 City Council meeting, staff was directed to update the utility rate
study with a target implementation of new proposed rates in spring 2021. This letter provides
a proposed scope of services and budget for HEC to update the study.

Scope of Services
The scope of services includes the following tasks:

Update the Solid Waste financial analysis.

Update the Water financial analysis.

Update the Wastewater financial analysis.

Prepare revised reports and PowerPoint slides summarizing the results of the
analyses.

5. Present the findings to the City Council and be present at the public hearing.
6. Prepare the Proposition 218 public notice.

pPUWNPR

Budget and Schedule

HEC will work on a schedule that meets the needs of the City; it is anticipated that final
reports will be presented December of this year with implementation of the new rates in
March, 2021. It is possible that this timeline may slip a bit with the holiday season and COVID-
related delays.

HEC’s contract with the City has a budget of $55,000. HEC has estimated the additional
budget that will be needed to updated the utility rates study and assist with the Proposition
218 public notices. The estimated additional budget detail is provided in Table 1 below.



Page 2 of 2
September 16, 2020

Table 1
Utility Rates Study Proposed Additional Budget

Number Catherine Schaelene Total
Task/Item Description of Hansford Rollins Clerical  Estimated
Hourly Billing Rates Meetings S$180 5130 S80 Cost
Staff Expenses
1 Update Solid Waste 16 $2,880
2 Update Water 16 $2,880
3 Update Sewer 16 $2,880
4 Prepare Revised Reports & PowerPoints 36 10 $7,280
5 Present to City Council 2 16 10 $3,680
6 Prepare 218 Public Notice 4 20 6 $3,800
Subtotal Staff Expenses 104 20 26 $23,400
Direct Expenses
Mileage Reimbursement $470
Translations & Mailer Design $2,500
Subtotal Direct Expenses $2,970
Contingency (5%) and Rounding $1,330
Total Estimated Cost $27,700
less Remaining Budget ($5,500)
Total Additional Budget Requested $22,200

In summary, it is proposed that our contract be amended as follows:
Original Budget: $55,000

Additional Requested: $22,200

Amended Budget: $77,200

Please review this proposed amendment to our current contract and call with any questions
or comments.

Yours faithfully,

(Gorips

Catherine R. Hansford
HANSFORD ECONOMIC CONSULTING LLC

Prepared by HEC



STAFF REPORT

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution Approving an Amendment to an Agreement with West Coast
Consultants, Inc. (WC3) for Building Department Support Services to
Extend the Agreement for an additional three (3) years, and Authorizing the
City Manager to Execute Amendment.

MEETING DATE:  October 20,2020

PREPARED BY: José Antonio Ramirez, City Manager

REVIEWED BY: José Antonio Ramirez, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Resolution No. 2020- , approving an amendment to an Agreement with WC3 to extend the
term for an additional three (3) years, and authorizing the City Manager to execute the Amendment.

BACKGROUND:

The City provides
via a contract provider since at least 2003. Contracting building services provides the City the most
flexibility to accommodate the highs and lows of development activity.

DISCUSSION & RECOMMENDATION:

Council to consider approving an amendment to a Professional Services Agreement with WC3 to extend
Agreement for three (3) additional years, and authorizing the City Manager to execute amendment.

No fee increase has been proposed by WC3 during this additional three-year period.

FISCAL IMPACT:

other related contract costs.

ATTACHMENTS:

1) Original three-year Professional Services Agreement
2) Amendment to Professional Services Agreement year contract extension


Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight

Kathy's Toy
Highlight


3) Resolution 2020- Approving an Amendment to an Agreement with West Coast Consultants, Inc.
(WC3) to extend the Agreement for an additional three years, and Authorizing the City Manager
to Execute Amendment.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON AND
WEST COAST CONSULTANTS, INC. (WC3)

THIS AGREEMENT for professional services is made by and between the City of Livingston, a
California municipal corporation (*City”), and West Coast Consultants, Inc. (WC3), (“Professional’) as of
September 19, 2017.

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Professional
shall provide to City the services described in the Scope of Work attached as Exhibit B at the time and
place and in the manner specified therein. In the event of a confiict or inconsistency between the terms of
this Agreement and Exhibit A, the Agreement shall prevail.

14 Term of Services, The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date first noted above
and shall end on September 19, 2020, the date of completion specified in Exhibit B.
Professional shall complete the work described in Exhibit B prior to that date, unless the
term of the Agreement is otherwise terminated or extended, as provided for in Section 8.
The time provided to Professional to complete the services required by this Agreement
shall not affect the City's right to terminate the Agreement, as provided for in Section 8.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Professional shall perform all services required pursuant to
this Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a competent
practitioner of the profession in which Professional is engaged in the geographical area in
which Professional practices its profession. Professional shall prepare all work products
required by this Agreement in a substantial, first-class manner and shall conform to the
standards of quality normally observed by a person practicing in Professional's profession.

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Professional shall assign only competent personnel to
perform services pursuant to this Agreement. In the event that City, in its sole discretion, at

any time during the term of this Agreement, desires the reassignment of any such persons,
Professional shall, immediately upon receiving notice from City of such desire of City,
reassign such person or persons.

1.4 Time. Professional shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant o this
Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of performance
provided in Section 1.2 above and to satisfy Professional's obligations hereunder.

Section 2, COMPENSATION. City hereby agrees to pay Professional a sum not to exceed
Compensation Schedule, notwithstanding any contrary indications that may be contained in Professional’s
proposal, for services to be performed and reimbursable costs incurred under this Agreement. In the event
of a conflict between this Agreement and Professional's proposal, attached as Exhibit A, regarding the
amount of compensation, the Agreement shall prevail. City shall pay Professional for services rendered
pursuant to this Agreement at the time and in the manner set forth herein. The payments specified below
shall be the only payments from City to Professional for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Professional shall submit all invoices to City in the manner specified herein. Except as specifically

authorized by City, Professional shall not bill City for duplicate services performed by more than one
person.

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc. Page 1 of 14




Professional and City acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by City to Professional under this
Agreement is based upon Professional’s estimated costs of providing the services required hereunder,
including salaries and benefits of employees and subcontractors of Professional. Consequently, the parties
further agree that compensation hereunder is intended to include the costs of contributions fo any pensions
and/or annuities to which Professional and its employees, agents, and subcontractors may be eligible, City
therefore has no responsibility for such contributions beyond compensation required under this Agreement,

241

2.2

23

24

Invoices. Professional shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

» Serial identifications of progress bills; i.e., Progress Bill No. 1 for the first invoice,
efc.;

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period:

* A Task Summary containing the original contract amount, the amount of prior
billings, the total due this period, the balance available under the Agreement, and
the percentage of completion;

* At City's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and
each reimbursable expense;

= The total number of hours of work performed under the Agreement by Professional
and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of Professional performing services
hereunder, as well as a separate notice when the total number of hours of work by
Professional and any individual employee, agent, or subcontractor of Professional
reaches or exceeds 800 hours, which shall include an estimate of the time
necessary to complete the work described in Exhibit B;

* The Professional's signature.

Monthly Payment. City shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received, for
services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. City

shall have 30 days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the requirements
above to pay Professional.

Total Payment, City shall pay for the services to be rendered by Professional pursuant to
this Agreement. City shall not pay any additional sum for any expense or cost whatsoever
incurred by Professional in rendering services pursuant to this Agreement. City shall make
no payment for any extra, further, or additional service pursuant to this Agreement.

In no event shall Professional submit any invoice for an amount in excess of the maximum
amount of compensation provided above either for a task or for the entire Agreement,
unless the Agreement is modified prior to the submission of such an invoice by a properly
executed change order or amendment.

Hourly Fees. Fees for work performed by Professional on an hourly basis shall not
exceed the amounts shown on the fee schedule set forth in Exhibit A

Professional Services Agreement between ] September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consul-ants, Inc. Page 2 of 14



24  Hourly Fees. Fees for work performed by Professional on an hourly basis shall not
exceed the amounts shown on the fee schedule set forth In Exhibit A.

25  Reimbursable Expenses. Reimbursable expenses, if any, are set forth in Exhibit A, and
shall not exceed Fee Schedule. Expenses not listed in Exhibit B are not chargeable to
City. Reimbursable expenses are included in the total amount of compensation provided
under this Agreement that shall not be exceeded.

2.6  Payment of Taxes. Professional is solely responsible for the payment of employment
taxes incurred under this Agreement and any similar federal or state taxes.

2.7 Payment upon Termination. In the event that the City or Professional terminates this
Agreement pursuant to Section 8, the City shall compensate the Professional for all
outstanding costs and reimbursable expenses incurred for work satisfactorily completed as
of the date of written notice of termination. Professional shall maintain adequate logs and
timesheets in order to verify costs incurred to that date.

28  Authorization to Perform Services. The Professional is not authorized to perform any
services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of
authorization from the Contract Administrator.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Professional shall, atits sole
cost and expense, provide all faciities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the services
required by this Agreement. City shall make available to Professional only the facilities and equipment
listed in this section, and only under the terms and conditions set forth herein,

City shall furnish physical facilities such as desks, filing cabinets, and conference space, as may be
reasonably necessary for Professional's use while consulting with City employees and reviewing records
and the information in possession of the City. The location, quantity, and time of furnishing those facilities
shall be in the sole discretion of City. In no event shall City be obligated to furnish any facility that may
involve incurring any direct expense, including but not limited to computer, long-distance telephone or other
communication charges, vehicles, and reproduction faciliies.

Section 4, INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this Agreement,
Professional, at its own cost and expense, shall procure “occurrence coverage" insurance against claims

for injuries to persons or damages to property that may arise from or in connection with the performance of
the work hereunder by the Professional and its agents, representatives, employees, and subcontractors.
Professional shall provide proof satisfactory to City of such insurance that meets the requirements of this
section and under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the City. Professional shall maintain the
insurance policies required by this section throughout the term of this Agreement. The cost of such
insurance shall be included in the Professional's bid. Professional shall not allow any subcontractor to
commence work on any subcontract until Professional has obtained all insurance required herein for the
subcontractor(s) and provided evidence thereof o City. Verification of the required insurance shall be

submitted and made part of this Agreement prior to execution. Professional shall maintain all required
insurance listed herein for the duration of this Agreement,

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc. Page 3 of 14



4.1  Workers’ Compensation. Professional shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain
Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Professional. The Statutory Workers’
Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liabllity Insurance shall be provided with limits of
not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00) per accident. In the alternative,
Professional may rely on a self-insurance program to meet those requirements, but only if
the program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor
Code. Determination of whether a self-insurance program meets the standards of the
Labor Code shall be solely in the discretion of the Contract Administrator. The insurer, if
insurance is provided, or the Professional, if a program of self-insurance is provided, shall
waive all rights of subrogation against the City and its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers for loss arising from work performed under this Agreement,

An endorsement shall state that coverage shall not be canceled except after thirty (30)
days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the
City. Professional shall notify City within fourteen (14) days of notification from
Professional’s insurer if such coverage is suspended, voided or reduced in coverage or in
limits.

The requirement to maintain Statutory Warkers' Compensation and Employer's Liability
Insurance insurance may be waived by the City upon written verification that Professional
does not have any employees.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.21 General requirements. Professional, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain
commercial general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement in an amount
not less than TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000.00) and automobile liability
insurance for the term of this Agreement in an amount not less than ONE MILLION
DOLLARS ($1,000,000.00). The commercial general liability and automobile
liability insurance shall be per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for risks
associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement, If a commercial general
liability insurance or an automobile liability form or other form with a general
aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately o
the work to be performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall
be at least twice the required occurrence limit. Such coverage shall include but
shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising from bodily and personal
injury, including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property resulting from
activities contemplated under this Agresment, including the use of owned and non-
owned automobiles.

4.22 Minimum scope of coverage. Commercial general liability coverage shall be at
least as broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability

occurrence form CG 0001 (most recent edition) covering comprehensive General
Liability on an “occurrence” basis. Automobile coverage shall be at least as broad
as Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 (most recent

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc. Page 4 of 14



edition), Code 1 (any auto). No endorsement shall be attached limiting the
coverage.

423 Additional requirements. Each of the following shall be included in the
insurance coverage or added as an endorsement to the policy:

a. City and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be coverad
as additional insureds with respect to each of the following: liability arising
out of activities performed by or on behalf of Professional, including the
insured’s general supervision of Professional; products and completed
operations of Professional; premises owned, occupied, or used by
Professional; and automobiles owned, leased, or used by the
Professional. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the
scope of protection afforded to City or its officers, employees, agents, or
volunteers.

b. The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident basis, and not
on a claims-made basis.

C. An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance with
respect to the City and its officers, officials, employees and volunteers,
and that no insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City shall be
called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

d. Any failure of Professional to comply with reporting provisions of the policy
shall not affect coverage provided to City and its officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers.

e. An endorsement shall state that coverage shall not be canceled except
after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City. Professional shall notify City within
fourteen (14) days of notification from Professional's insurer if such
coverage s suspended, voided or reduced in coverage or in limits.

43  Professional Liability Insurance. Professional, at its own cost and expense, shall
maintain for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability insurance for
licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less
than TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000) covering the licensed professionals’ errors
and omissions,

4.31  Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed $150,000 per claim.

4.3.2 Anendorsement shall state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided,
canceled by either party, or reduced in coverage or in limits, except after thirty (30)

days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given
to the City.

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, inc. Page 5 of 14



4.3.3  The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability coverages are
written on a claims-made form:

a. The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and must be before the
date of the Agreement.
b. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be

provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the Agreement or
the work, so long as commercially available at reasonable rates,

c. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not replaced with another
claims-made policy form with a retroactive date that precedes the date of
this Agreement, Professional must provide extended reporting coverage
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Agreement or the
work. The City shall have the right to exercise, at the Professional’s sole
cost and expense, any extended reporting provisions of the policy, if the
Professional cancels or does not renew the coverage.

d. A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be submitted to the City
prior to the commencement of any work under this Agreement.

44 All Policies Requirements.

441  Acceptability of insurers. All insurance required by this section is to be placed
with insurers with a Bests' rating of no less than A: Vi,

44.2 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Professional shall furnish City with certificates of insurance and with original
endorsements effecting coverage required herein. The certificates and
endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized
by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The City reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time.

44.3 Subcontractors. Professional shall include all subcontractors as insureds under
its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each
subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shail be subject to all of the
requirements stated herein,

444  Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions, Professional shall disclose to and
obtain the approval of City for the self-insured retentions and deductibles before
beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement,

During the period covered by this Agreement, only upon the prior express written
authorization of Contract Administrator, Professional may increase such
deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to City, its officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers. The Contract Administrator may condition approval of an
increase in deductible or self-insured retention levels with a requirement that

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc. Page 6 of 14,




4.5

Section 5.

5.1

Professional procure a bond, guaranteeing payment of losses and related
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in
all respects to each of them.

445 Waiver of Subrogation. Professional hereby agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer or contractor may require from vendor by virtue of the payment of any
loss. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsements that may be necessary to
effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the entity for all work performed
by the Professional, its employees, agents, and subcontractors,

44.6 Notice of Reduction in Coverage. In the event that any coverage required by
this section is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other manner,
Professional shall provide written notice to City at Professional's earliest possible
opportunity and in no case later than five (5) days after Professional is notified of
the change in coverage.

Remedies. In addition to any other remedies City may have if Professional fails to provide
or maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within the time
herein required, City may, at its sole option exercise any of the following remedies, which
are alteratives to other remedies City may have and are not the exclusive remedy for
Professional’s breach:

= Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of the premiums for such
insurance from any sums due under the Agreement;

*  Order Professional to stop work under this Agreement or withhold any payment that
becomes due to Professional hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment,
until Professional demonstrates compliance with the requirements hereof; and/or

* Terminate this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND PROFESSIONAL'S RESPONSIBILITIES.

General Requirement, Professional shall indemnify, defend with counsel selected by the
City, and hold harmless the City and its officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers from and against any and all losses, liability, claims, suits, actions, damages,
and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life, or damage
to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, fo the
extent caused, in whole or in part, by the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions
of Professional or its employees, subcontractors, or agents, by acts for which they could
be held strictly liable, or by the quality or character of their work. The foregoing obligation
of Professional shall not apply when (1) the injury, loss of life, damage to property, or
violation of law arises wholly from the negligence or willful misconduct of the City orits
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers and (2) the actions of Professional or its
employees, subcontractor, or agents have contributed in no partto the injury, loss of life,
damage to property, or violation of law. It is understood that the duty of Professional to

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc. Page 7 of 14




indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the
California Civil Code. Acceptance by City of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Professional from liability under this
Indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Professional
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element
of consideration.

5.2  PERS Indemnification. In the event that Professional or any employee, agent, or
subcontractor of Professional providing services under this Agreement is determined by a
court of competent jurisdiction or the California Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS) to be eligible for enroliment in PERS as an employee of City, Professional shall
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Clty for the payment of any employee and/or
employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Professional o its employees,
agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and interest on such
contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of City.

5.3  Design Professionals. Notwithstanding Sections 5.1 and 5.2, to the extent that
the services under this Agreement include design professional services subject to
California Civil Code Section 2782.8, as may be amended from time to time,
Professional’s duty to indemnify shall only be to the maximum extent permitted by
California Civil Code Section 2782.8.

Section 6. STATUS OF PROFESSIONAL.

6.1 Independent Contractor. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Professional
shall be an independent contractor as defined in Labor Code Section 3353, and shall not
be an employee of City. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to be
inconsistent with the foregoing relationship or status. City shall have the right to control
Professional only insofar as the results of Professional's services rendered pursuant to this
Agreement and assignment of personnel pursuant to Subparagraph 1.3; however,
otherwise City shall not have the right to control the means by which Professional
accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Professional shall have no
power or authority by this Agreement to bind the City in any respect. All employees and
agents hired or retained by Professional are employees and agents of Professional and
not of the City. The City shall not be obligated in any way to pay any wage claims or other
claims made against Professional by any such employees or agents, or any other person
resulting from performance of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding any other City, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance
to the contrary, Professional and any of its employees, agents, and subcontractors
providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and
hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of
employment by City, including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of City and entitlement to any
contribution to be paid by City for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc. Page 8 of 14




6.2

Section 7.
7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

15

PERS benefits. Professional shall not allow any employee to become eligible for a claim
for PERS benefits.

Professional Not an Agent. Except as City may specify in writing, Professional shall
have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever
as an agent. Professional shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this
Agreement to bind City to any obligation whatsoever.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Professional and any subcontractors shall

comply with all laws and regulations applicable to the performance of the work
hereunder, including but not limited to, the California Building Code, the Americans
with Disabilities Act, and any copyright, patent or trademark law. Professional's
failure to comply with any law(s) or regulation(s) applicable to the performance of
the work hereunder shall constitute a breach of contract.

Other Governmental Regulations. To the extent that this Agreement may be funded by
fiscal assistance from another governmental enity, Professional and any subcontractors

shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations to which City is bound by the terms of
such fiscal assistance program. '

Licenses and Permits. Professional represents and warrants to City that Professional
and its employees, agents, and any subcontractors have all licenses, permits,
qualifications, and approvals of whatsoever nature that are legally required to practice their
respective professions. Professional represents and warrants to City that Professional and
its employees, agents, any subcontractors shall, at their sole cost and expense, keep in
effect at all times during the term of this Agreement any licenses, permits, and approvals
that are legally required to practice their respective professions. In addition to the
foregoing, Professional and any subcontractors shall obtain and maintain valid Business
Licenses from City during the term of this Agreement.

Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. Professional shall not discriminate, on the

basis of a person’s race, religion, color, national origin, age, physical or mental handicap or
disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual orientation, against any
employee, applicant for employment, subcontractor, bidder for a subcontract, or participant
in, recipient of, or applicant for any services or programs provided by Professional under
this Agreement, Professional shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,
policies, rules, and requirements related to equal opportunity and nondiscrimination in
employment, contracting, and the provision of any services that are the subject of this
Agreement, including but not limited to the satisfaction of any positive obligations required
of Professional thereby. '

Professional shall include the provisions of this Subsection in any subcontract approved by
the Contract Administrator or this Agreement,

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc. Page 9 of 14



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION,

Termination. City may cancel this Agresment at any time and without cause upon written
notification to Professional.

Professional may cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days' written notice to City and
shall include in such notice the reasons for cancellation.

In the event of termination, Professional shall be entitied to compensation for services
performed to the effective date of termination; City, however, may condition payment of
such compensation upon Professional delivering to City any or all documents,
photographs, computer software, video and audio tapes, and other materials provided to
Professional or prepared by or for Professional or the City in connection with this
Agreement.

Extension. City may, in its sole and exclusive discretion, extend the end date of this
Agreement beyond that provided for in Subsection 1.1. Any such extension shall require a
written amendment to this Agreement, as provided for herein, Professional understands
and agrees that, if City grants such an extension, City shall have no obligation to provide
Professional with compensation beyond the maximum amount provided for in this
Agreement. Similarly, unless authorized by the Contract Administrator, City shall have no
obligation to reimburse Professional for any otherwise reimbursable expenses incurred
during the extension period.

Amendments. The parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
parties.

Assignment and Subcontracting. City and Professional recognize and agree that this
Agreement contemplates personal performance by Professional and is based upon a

determination of Professional’s unique personal competence, experience, and specialized
personal knowledge. Moreover, a substantial inducement to City for entering into this
Agreement was and is the professional reputation and competence of Professional.
Professional may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Contract Administrator, Professional shall not subcontract any portion of
the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the subcontractors
noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the Contract Administrator,

Survival. Al obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between City and Professional shall survive
the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Professional, If Professional materially breaches any of the

terms of this Agreement, City's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.6.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc, Page 10 of 14



Section 9,

9.1

9.2

9.3

Section 10

10.1

8.6.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Professional pursuant to this Agreement;

8.6.3 Retain a different Professional to complete the work described in Exhibit B not
finished by Professional; or

8.64 Charge Professional the difference between the cost to complete the work
described in Exhibit B that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that
City wou!d have paid Professional pursuant to Section 2 if Professional had
completed the work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Professional’s Performance. Al reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Professional prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the City. Professional hereby agrees to deliver
those documents to the City upon termination of the Agreement. It is understood and
agreed that the documents and other materials, including but not fimited to those described
above, prepared pursuant to this Agreement are prepared specifically for the City and are
not necessarily suitable for any future or other use. City and Professional agree that, until
final approval by City, all data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents are
confidential and will not be released to third parties without prior written consent of both
parties.

Professional’s Books and Records. Professional shall maintain any and all ledgers,
books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents
evidencing or relating to charges for services or expenditures and disbursements charged
to the City under tnis Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period
required by law, from the date of final payment to the Professional pursuant to this
Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that Section 9.2 of this
Agreement requires Professional to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit,

and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of
the City. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of City or as part of any audit of the City, for a period of three (3) years after final
payment under the Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.
Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for

declaratory refief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitied fo reasonable attorneys' fees in addition to any other relief to which

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc. Page 11 of 14



10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action orin a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Merced or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agresment shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the parties.

Use of Recycled Products. Professional shall prepare and submit alf reports, written
studies and other printed material on recycled paper to the extent it is available at equal or
less cost than virgin paper.

Conflict of Interest. Professional may serve other clients, but none whose activities
within the corporate limits of City or whose business, regardless of location, would place
Professional in a “conflict of interest," as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 ef seq.

Professional shall not employ any City official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of City shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 ef seq,

Professional hereby warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous twelve (12)
months, an employee, agent, appointee, o official of the City. If Professional was an
employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City in the previous twelve months,
Professional warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the forming of this
Agreement. Professional understands that, if this Agreement is made in violation of
Government Code §1090 el.seq., the entire Agreement is void and Professional will not be
entitled to any compensation for services performed pursuant to this Agreement, Including
reimbursement of experises, and Professional will be required to reimburse the City for any
sums paid to the Professional. Professional understands that, in addition to the foregoing,
it may be subject to criminal prosecution for a violation of Government Code § 1090 and, if
applicable, will be disqualified from holding public office in the State of California.

Professlonal Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc. Page 12 of 14



108  Solicitation, Professional agrees not to solicit business at any meeting, focus group, or
interview related to this Agreement, either orally or through any written materials,

10.9  Contract Administration. This Agreement shall be administered by the City of Livingston
("Contract Administrator”). All correspondence shall be directed fo or through the Contract
Administrator or his or her designee.

10.10  Notices. Any written notice to Professional shall be sent o:

Giyan A. Senaratne, Principal/CEQ
West Coast Consultants, Inc.

3841 N. Freeway Blvd., Suite 280
Sacramento, CA 95834

Any written notice to City shall be sent to:

Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager
City of Livingston

1416 C Street

Livingston, CA 95334

10.11  Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the contract administrator or
when required by law, the first page of a technical report, first page of design
specifications, and each page of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and
signed by the licensed professional responsible for the report/design preparation. The
stamp/seal shall be in a block entitled "Seal and Signature of Registered Professional with
report/design responsibility,” as in the following example.

Seal and Signature of Registered Professional with
report/design responsibility.

10.12  Integration. This Agreement, including the scope of work attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit B, and the compensation schedule attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A, represents the entire and integrated agreement between
City and Professional and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral.

10.13  IRS Form W-9. Professional shall complete and submit Internal Revenue Service Form
W-9 to the City before execution of this Agreement. The City’s Finance Director shall have
authority to waive this requirement.

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc. Page 13 of 14



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first set forth
above, which date shall be considered by the Parties to be the effective date of this Agreement,

CITY OF LIVINGSTON

A R vay—é
Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager

Date: _ 10-2~-17T

[6-26~1

Attest:

/""’ 2 /."; -
Dot 7=

Betty Cota, Depiffy, City Clerk
Date: /& -3 -/77

Approved as to Form:

B/

Joge M. Sanchez, City Attorney

pate: 19/ 3/// 7

Professional Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc. Page 14 of 14



EXHIBIT A

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE -

Consulting Services Agreement between

September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc.~Exhibit A Page 1



nServices

Exhibit A - Fee Schedule

Please find Exhibit A for the complete list of proposed hourly rates for the personnel assigned to the citys projects under the
RFP below,

EXRIBIT A
EEE SCHEDULE

All responses o th.s RFP shall inchude the following information, Far your convenieice, yawinay camplote this
form and Include It in your praposal. Fallura to Includo the Information contained it this exhibit may he cauge for
reJectlon of your pioposal,

1. Consultant's Peysomue}

List all peszonuel you ave proposing for the requirements listed hoveln. For all ¢lassifications shown,
indleate e 11ame(s) of the persunnel propoxed tu perform In that classification. A single individual may be
propiosed i more than ena olassification, but ench classification shall be clearly noted,

Hourly BilEug Rates shell include all overliead costs includiug, but nat limlted lo, solaries, benefits,
Worlcers Compensation nsurnce, uffice expenses, ete. Additional charges (or Incldental expenses such as
capies, teleshane colls, cte, will not be allowed.

Clusyifiention Stulf Porsan Name Hourly Billng Rate
Interimy Budlding Officin] TBD 3125400
Senior Structural Engineer TBD $115.00
Plan Review Engincer/Arclitec: TBD $.100.00
ICC Curtifed Plous Examiner TBD 345,00

lugpector (L —TBD $40.00

Jiwpestor | 18D $70.00
Perinit Teehnieian TBD $3500

S
S,
$
3

West Coast Code Consultants, Inc. 19



SPBEHION Services

 August 30,2017

Exhibit A - Subcontractors

WC3 will not be using any subcontractor personel if awarded the contract.

1. Subeontypetars

Ifany portion of the work will be performed by subcontactors, list ull subcontiactor personnel, If none of

the work will be assigned to subcontractous, then so state.

Hourly Billing Rates shall incfude all overhead costs inoluding, but not limitsd to, salaties, bonefits,

Workers Compensation Insurance, office urpenses, ele. Additional churges for incidental expenses such as

Imileage, copics, telephone calls, etc. will not be allowed.
Classification

Consultant Coinpany Staff Person Name Hourly Billing Rate
W3 will not be wsitz subcontractars for auy partion of the work for this comreact $
N/A N/A N/A $ NiA
$
S
b
§
$
10

West Coast Code Consultants, Inc.

20



EXHIBITB

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Consulting Services Agreement between September 19, 2017
City of Livingston and West Coast Consultants, Inc.--Exhibit B Page 1



Plan Review Service & Digital Review Capability

Outlined below is the general process WC? utilizes to provide plan review services. The following is
presented as a guideline only and shall to be adjusted according to the unique procedures of your
department. We will work with your department in a seamless and timely manner for the review of
plans and supporting documents for code compliance,

Building Plan Review Quality Assurance Procedure

The project manager is responsible for establishing and maintaining plan review standards and for
verifying that all design is done in accordance with said standards. The project manager has the
following quality assurance responsibilities:

*  Establishing and maintaining local design criteria’s, local municipal adoptions, and plan
review checklist tailored to the jurisdictions needs.

* Maintaining familiarity with all projects during design and providing input and sugges-
tions as required.

*  Performing quality assurance reviews on all projects,

An information binder/file specific to the City of Livingston will be created to identify items inherent

and of interest to the City. This binder is maintained and utilized during each review ensuring City
concerns are addressed,

Building Plan Review Process and Methodology Review

> WC? provides electronic plan review services. We assist in training your staff regarding
submittals, processing, and issuance of projects reviewed electronically. A protected online
portal can be established for department staff or applicants to upload plan to our plans portal.
R The portal allows quick access and information regarding plan review assignment, status, monthly
reporting and viewing of submitted documents during the review process. (www.plans.wc-3.com)

> A courier service will be dispatched for pick-up paper plans on the same day when notified by
noon, or otherwise within 24 hours. WC? will utilize oyr established ground service account to pick
up all documents to be delivered to our office at no additional cost to the City.

> Plan reviews result in typewritten lists of comments always referring to specific details, drawing
sheets, and applicable code sections. Should the City have a specific format for correction or
approval letters we are happy to utilize your format.

> WC understands code interpretations are subject to final review and approval by the Chief

Building Official, It is further understood ail plan review comments are subject to the review by
City staff members.

West Coast Code Consultants, Inc. 12



- August 30, 201

> Plan reviews will be conducted within timeframes established by the City and identified under the
Plan Review Turnaround Schedule.

» Comment lists will be electronically sent to the City’s designated staff members for inclusionina
consolidated correction letter,

»  All communication with the applicant's designee will be conducted and coordinated as required
to assist in responding to our plan review letters,

> We will work with the jurisdictions preferred method of communication.

> Plan review approval will not be recommended to the City until all code compliance issues are
resolved to the best of our knowledge and all permit issuance requirements of the department
are satisfied. Electronic plans cycle will be stored on the portal, until final approvals are
completed. At that point WC? can provide a protected digital copy or final hardcopy approvals to
the City.

WC? will provide the following scope of building plan review services by performing plan reviews at
our main office or, if requested, at the City's Building Division. Plans will be carefully reviewed for
their compliance with the model codes adopted by the State of California and as amended by the City
of Livingston. Plans are thoroughly reviewed for the following, as applicable;

> Life Safety Plan Review > Geotechnical Report Review

> Title-24 Accessibility Plan Review ><ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>